
An architecturally unique concert  
hall of international repute such  
as the one at the KKL Luzern Culture 
and Convention Centre is depen-
dent on the faultless functioning of its 
electrical installations, such as light-
ing and air-conditioning. The Schaffner Group’s innovative  

harmonic filters ECOsine™ Active ensure 
that there is no interference among  
the various types of equipment with their 
non-linear controls so that light regula-
tors, frequency converters, sound techno-
logy and IT function smoothly at all times.
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The economic crisis led to a 35% drop in sales to European customers. 
In addition to the machine tools sector, Fotovoltaics was most severely 
affected.

Increased demand from Chinese customers led to an 11% increase in sales 
in Asia. Wind and solar energy products and rail technology were particular 
contributors here.

–35% +11%

While demand in the industrialized economies, notably in the 
capital goods sector, fell sharply under the pressure of the eco-
nomic crisis, the Chinese market grew to become the Schaffner 
Group’s second-largest individual market in the 2008 / 2009 fiscal 
year, accounting for 17 percent of sales. Sustained strong growth 
in China, particularly in the area of power quality applications, led 
to continuous expansion of capacities at the Schaffner plant in 
Shanghai.

The Schaffner Group is an international leader 
in the development and production of solu-
tions which ensure the efficient and reliable 
operation of electronic systems. The Group’s 
diverse range of offerings includes EMC com-
ponents, active and passive harmonic filters 
and magnetic components as well as the devel-
opment and implementation of customized  
solutions. Schaffner products are deployed in 
energy-efficient drive systems and electronic 
motor controls, in wind power and photovolta-
ic systems, rail technology, machine tools and 
robots as well as power supplies for a wide 
range of electronic devices in sectors such as 
medical technology, telecommunications and 
automotive electronics. Schaffner provides on-
site service to customers around the world 
through an efficient, global organization and 
makes ongoing investments in research, devel-
opment, production and sales to strengthen its 
position as international market leader.

January 09
The Schaffner Group 
extends its technological 
competence with the 
active harmonic filter 
ECOsine™ Active by ac-
quiring German company 
BETEC-Engineering. 

March 09
The economic crisis leads 
to a severe drop in sales, 
particularly in the EMC 
filter market. Respond-
ing to the situation, the 
Schaffner Group intro-
duces short-time working 
and adjusts its global 
workforce to the change 
in demand.

September 09
The large order for 
the delivery of compo-
nents for the Chinese 
National Railway’s new 
high-tech locomotives 
reconfirms the Schaffner 
Group’s standing as a 
leading supplier of mag-
netic components to the 
international rail technol-
ogy sector.

Net sales
in CHF million

EBIT
in CHF million

Net profit
in CHF million

Free cash flow
in CHF million

Geographical breakdown of sales 

Energy efficiency and reliability 



Schaffner Holding AG Annual Report 2008 / 20091

Annual Report 2008 / 2009

 Contents 

 2 Fiscal 2008 /2009
 4 Core markets of the Schaffner Group
 6 Corporate Governance

 13 Financial statements
 14 Schaffner Group
 42 Schaffner Holding AG

 48 Information to shareholders
 49 Key share figures
 50 Key figures



Schaffner Holding AG Annual Report 2008 / 20092

Fiscal 2008 / 2009 

Restructuring positions Group 
for sustainable growth 

In the 2008 / 2009 fiscal year, the Schaffner 
Group’s sales in Europe, the USA and Japan fell 
by around 33 percent due to the collapse in de-
mand in the capital goods market. In contrast,  
a 38 percent increase in orders and an 11 percent 
rise in sales were recorded in China. While the 
demand for EMC components dropped to virtu-
ally zero at times, global sales of power quality 
solutions went up 9 percent. Because of these 
divergent market developments, EMC produc-
tion had to be restructured worldwide on the 
one hand, and the development and manufactur-
ing capacities for power quality products were 
expanded in Shanghai on the other. China turned 
out to be Schaffner’s second-biggest customer 
after Germany in 2008 / 2009, at 17 percent of 
Group sales (previous year: 10 percent). The year 
under review saw a reduction in cost and in net 
current assets and an increase in financial flex-
ibility. Despite the difficult market environment 
product innovations continued. The Schaffner 
Group is therefore well-placed more to benefit 
than average when the market recovers.

Sustained cost reductions 
The Schaffner Group’s net sales fell in 2008 / 2009 by  
CHF 133.4 million (2007 / 2008: CHF 182.4 million). Adjusted for  
currency effects, this represents a decline of 24.0 percent. 
Order intake amounted to CHF 132.5 million (CHF 188.5 mil-
lion). The book-to-bill ratio was 0.99 (2nd half-year: 1.03).  
The operating result (EBIT) before restructuring costs was 
CHF –4.5 million (CHF 13.9 million). After the one-off restruc-
turing costs of CHF 4.7 million, EBIT came to CHF –9.2 mil-
lion and the net result to CHF –10.9 million (CHF 9.4 million). 
Headcount fell year-on-year by an average of 510 full-time 
equivalents (22 percent), and personnel expenses were re-
duced by 13 percent. The cost reduction measures are taking 
effect and the Schaffner Group achieved a positive EBIT be-
fore restructuring costs of CHF 0.4 million in the second half, 
despite a 15 percent decline in sales compared with the first 
half (CHF –4.9 million). The reduction in net current assets 
by 38 percent to CHF 30.6 million was greater than the fall in 
sales, and the high free cash flow of CHF 10.7 million (CHF 3.4 
million) enabled the company to pay down its net debt.

Market developments 
Sales of components for machine tools and robotics fell by  
42 percent. Since manufacturers of solar inverters were re-
ducing the surplus inventories accumulated in the previous 
year, the decline in the market for renewable energies was 
on a similar level, at 45 percent. In addition, new projects for 
solar plants were delayed, primarily due to lack of project  
financing. Demand from European solar inverter manufactur-
ers has been rising again since the fourth quarter. There has 
been a huge demand from Chinese wind turbine makers. 
Schaffner supplies seven of the twelve major producers in 
the growing Chinese domestic market. The renewable ener-
gies market continues to offer high growth potential. In rail 
technology, Schaffner was able to gain share in the growing 
total market, leading to a 47 percent increase in sales in this 
area. The Group supplies magnetic components in Europe 
and China to the five biggest manufacturers of electric drive 
units. Schaffner serves all technology platforms from Germany 
and China: high-speed trains, locomotives, regional trains  
and underground trains. Among other things, the company  
is supplying magnetic components for construction of the 
high-speed trains that will cover the new 1,400-kilometer 
route between Beijing and Shanghai in four hours from 2010 
onwards. At the end of 2008, Schaffner entered the growing 
market for harmonic filters, which ensure interference-free 
power supply to buildings and infrastructure installations. 
Schaffner’s in-house developments were complemented in 
January 2009 by the products of the newly acquired BETEC-
Engineering. Schaffner’s harmonic filters – ECOsine™ –  
ensure the flawless functioning of the electrical systems at 
the KKL Luzern Culture and Convention Centre as well as  
in the Shanghai Metro, skyscraper projects in Singapore and 
mining operations in Australia. Demand in the automotive 
electronics market was virtually zero at the start of the year. 
However, a significant revival has been evident since the 
summer thanks to newly acquired projects. Schaffner will se-
cure itself a position in this important growth market, too, 
with the launch of production of EMC filters for hybrid and 
electric drives planned for the end of 2009.

Greatly strengthened financial structure 
The Group’s financial structure was strengthened in the year 
under review. Net debt was reduced to CHF 11.9 million 
(CHF 22.6 million). Gearing (ratio of net debt to shareholders’ 
equity) improved to 25 percent (39  percent). An approved 
credit line of CHF 40 million has been agreed with our princi-
pal banks. This, together with the Schaffner Group’s current 
earnings situation and sound liquidity, will secure the follow-
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up financing of the convertible bond that is due to mature at 
the end of January 2010 (2.25 % convertible bonds 2004–2010, 
remaining amount CHF 42.8 million).

Dividend proposal 
On the grounds of the 2008 / 2009 annual result and against 
the background of continuing unsatisfactory market visibility, 
the Board of Directors of Schaffner Holding AG will propose to 
the Annual General Meeting that no dividend be paid.

Outlook
Despite some market recovery in the past few months, it 
is impossible to predict how the sales markets will develop 
further. Therefore no forecasts can be made at present for 
fiscal 2009/2010. On the basis of the successful restructuring, 
its market leadership in key sectors and its focus on growth 
markets, Schaffner is set to benefit more than average when 
the market recovers. The medium-term objectives of an oper-
ating return on sales of 10 percent and sales of over CHF 200 
million remain unchanged.

Word of thanks 
The Board of Directors and Group Management would like to 
thank employees for their enormous personal commitment 
during this past year which was dominated by the economic 
crisis. We would also like to thank our business partners and 
you, our shareholders, for the trust you have placed in the 
Schaffner Group.

Luterbach, December 8, 2009

Leo Steiner Alexander Hagemann 
Chairman of the Board of Directors Chief Executive Officer

Leo Steiner Alexander Hagemann
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Energy-efficient drive systems 

Core markets of the Schaffner Group 
The Schaffner Group’s products and solutions improve power quality and enable sub- 
stantial savings in energy consumption and costs. They extend the useful life of electrically 
operated devices and systems, meeting both economic and ecological requirements.

A large proportion of grid electricity is now used by electric 
motors. As the sustainable use of electricity gains increas-
ingly in economic and regulatory importance, solutions that 
offer lower energy consumption are becoming more and 
more relevant. Efficiency-optimized electronic motor controls 
play a key role here. Schaffner components support their 
interference-free integration in complete systems and protect 
the electricity grid and neighboring equipment from harmful 
perturbation effects. Schaffner’s offering includes analyzing 
requirements, developing, manufacturing and delivering com-
ponents, and testing flawless functioning at the customer’s 
premises or in its own development laboratories.

20.1 % 
of net sales 

10 cm

Renewable energies  

Electricity generated from renewable sources has to be con-
verted by electronic power switches into grid-compatible 
alternating current before being fed into the grid. In the pro-
cess, interfering pulses occur which impair the operation of 
other electrical and electronic devices and may infringe inter-
national power quality standards. Components made by the 
Schaffner Group adapt the electricity generated from renew-
able energy to the requirements of modern electricity grids. 
Schaffner’s product line comprises magnetic components  
(reactors, transformers) for wind energy and EMC compo-
nents (chokes, AC and DC filters) for photovoltaic systems.

10 cm

10.5 % 
of net sales 

Schaffner’s harmonic filters ensure flawless functioning of elec- 
trical systems in the KKL Luzern Culture and Convention Centre, the 
Shanghai metro, mines and a host of other applications.

In the renewable energies market, Schaffner supplies most of the lead-
ing manufacturers of solar inverters and wind turbines worldwide.
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Today, Schaffner Automotive 
solutions are mainly installed 
in keyless locking systems, 
electronic immobilizers  
and tire pressure monitoring 
systems. In the future, the 
increasing popularity of plug-
in hybrid and electric vehicles 
will require the use of EMC 
and power quality products in 
these vehicles to ensure that 
charging from the grid goes 
smoothly and without nega-
tive effects for other devices.

Automotive

6.8 % 
of net sales 

The Schaffner Group’s EMC 
and power quality solutions 
ensure the efficient and 
reliable use of electrical de-
vices and systems in a wide 
range of applications. These 
include machine tools and 
robots, mobile network base 
stations and medical technol-
ogy, for example diagnostic 
equipment, X-ray machines 
and computer tomographs.

Other core markets 

48.4 % 
of net sales 

Rail technology 

Components from Schaffner – transformers and power 
inductors – are used in the drive units of rail locomotives, 
coaches and wagons. They ensure an efficient flow of energy 
and reliable operation. They also prevent interference in 
onboard electronics. Schaffner’s offering includes auxiliary 
transformers, reactors, harmonic and EMC filters and proven, 
computer-aided measuring and test procedures. Schaffner 
is the only manufacturer in the international arena to supply 
magnetic components for use in rail technology and broad-
based applications know-how from a single source.

10 cm

14.2 % 
of net sales 

Schaffner is market leader in the supply of magnetic components for 
deployment in rail electronics applications – from high-speed trains to 
underground trains – and serves the most important manufacturers in 
Europe and China.
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Corporate Governance

Schaffner Holding AG is a public listed company under Swiss 
law headquartered in Luterbach. Its ordinary share capital of 
CHF 20,668,050 is divided into 635,940 registered shares with 
a nominal value of CHF 32.50 per share.

The registered shares of Schaffner Holding AG are traded on 
the main segment of the SIX Swiss Exchange under securities 
number 906 209. The stock market capitalization as of Sep-
tember 30, 2009, was CHF 108 million, based on the number 
of shares in circulation. The convertible bond of Schaffner 
Holding AG is traded on the SIX Swiss Exchange under securi-
ties number 1 754 641.
Ticker symbols:
– Registered share: SAHN
– Convertible bond: SAH04

Companies of the Schaffner Group
The companies belonging to the Schaffner Group are listed on 

page 40 of the Schaffner Group Financial Report under note 
29.
 

Significant shareholders
Information on significant shareholders can be found on page 
44 of the Schaffner Holding AG Financial Report.

As at September 30, 2009, 1,301 shareholders with voting 
rights (previous year: 1,325) were listed in the share register 
of Schaffner Holding AG. Of the total shares issued, 99.9  % 
are free float. Schaffner held 0.1  % treasury shares. 

Cross-shareholdings
No cross-shareholdings with other public listed companies 
exist.

Group structure and shareholders

Ordinary share capital CHF 20,668,050
Divided into 635,940 registered shares with a nominal value of CHF 32.50 per share.

The share capital is fully paid up.

Each share grants the owner one vote at the Annual General Meeting.  

All shares not held by the company or one of its subsidiaries are dividend-bearing.

Conditional share capital Conditional share capital for employee share option plan: CHF 693,550
Divided into 21,340 registered shares with a nominal value of CHF 32.50 per share.

Shareholders’ pre-emptive rights are excluded.

Conditional share capital for 2.25  % convertible bond: CHF 6,175,000
Divided into 190,000 registered shares with a nominal value of CHF 32.50 per share.

Shareholders’ pre-emptive rights are excluded.

A pre-emptive subscription right was granted to shareholders.

Capital structure

Board of Directors

Group Management Chairmanship Finance & IT Sales Europe

Alexander Hagemann Kurt Ledermann Jean-Michel Calleri

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Vice President

Research & Development Business Development Asia

Fabian Beck Eduard Hadorn

Vice President Vice President

Manufacturing Supply Chain Management

Ah Bee Goh Martin Koeppel

Vice President Vice President

Management structure
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Outstanding convertible bond
On January 28, 2004, Schaffner Holding AG issued a 2.25  % 
convertible bond with a principal amount of CHF 49.4 million 
and final redemption after six years (2004–2010). The con-
version price determined in a book-building procedure was 
CHF 260, which corresponded to a conversion ratio of 3.846 
shares of Schaffner Holding AG per convertible bond with a 
nominal value of CHF 1,000 each.

In accordance with Art. III Section 5 (d), (i) of the issue pro-
spectus, the conversion price and the conversion ratio are 
reduced subject to the occurrence of certain events. This 
resulted in an adjustment of the conversion price on Janu-
ary 29, 2007, from CHF 260 to CHF 238.32. The difference 
between the previous and the new conversion price is paid in 
cash by the issuer in the event of conversion. The repayment 
of nominal value as at April 5, 2007, resulted in a further ad-
justment of the conversion price to CHF 232.16 and an adjust-
ment of the conversion ratio to 3.948 shares per convertible 
bond. The further repayment of nominal value as at April 3, 
2009, resulted in an additional adjustment of the conversion 
price to CHF 230.96 and an adjustment of the conversion ra-
tio to 3.969 shares per convertible bond. 

In the current 2008 / 2009 fiscal year, convertible bonds with 
a nominal value of CHF 1.6 million were converted and con-
vertible bonds with a nominal value of CHF 6.3 million were 
repurchased for redemption.

More information on the conditional share capital in the 
2008 / 2009 Annual Report:
– Employee share option plan, page 32 of the Schaffner 

Group Financial Report,
– Convertible bond, page 27 of the Schaffner Group Financial 

Report and page 43 of the Schaffner Holding AG Financial 
Report and in the issue prospectus of January 26, 2004. 

Changes in capital
A decision was passed at the Annual General Meeting of  
January 17, 2007, to reduce the ordinary share capital of 
Schaffner Holding AG from CHF 31,797,000 to CHF 24,801,660 by 
decreasing the nominal value per share from CHF 50 to CHF 39.

A decision was passed at the Annual General Meeting of  
January 16, 2008, to reduce the ordinary share capital of 
Schaffner Holding AG from CHF 24,801,660 to CHF 22,893,840 
by decreasing the nominal value per share from CHF 39  
to CHF 36.The conditional share capital was also reduced  
accordingly.

A decision was passed at the Annual General Meeting of 
January 14, 2009, to reduce the ordinary share capital of 
Schaffner Holding AG from CHF 22,893,840 to CHF 20,668,050 
by decreasing the nominal value per share from CHF 36 to 
CHF 32.50. The conditional share capital was also reduced 
accordingly.

Changes in share capital, capital reserves, retained earnings
and other items of the consolidated equity are listed on page 
17 of the Annual Report 2008 / 2009 in the Financial Report
of the Schaffner Group. The information for previous years
can be found on page 35 of the Financial Report of the 
Schaffner Group for fiscal 2007 / 2008 and on page 37 of the 
Annual Report 2006 / 2007 and page 19 of the Financial Report 
2005 / 2006. 
 

Limitations to transferability and nominee registrations
Anyone registered in the share register is considered to be 
a shareholder or beneficial owner. Anyone purchasing reg-
istered shares is registered by the Board of Directors in the 
share register on request as a shareholder with voting rights, 
provided they expressly declare that the shares have been 
bought and will be held for their own account.

The Board of Directors registers nominees with voting rights 
in the share register up to a maximum of 5  % of the share 
capital recorded in the Commercial Registry. Above this limit, 
registered shares of nominees with voting rights are only 
registered in the share register if the nominee discloses the 
names, addresses and holdings of the persons for whose ac-
count he or she holds 0.5  % or more of the registered share 
capital. Nominees are persons who do not expressly declare 
in their registration application that they have bought and 
are holding the shares for their own account. The Board of 
Directors is entitled to conclude agreements with nominees 
regarding reporting obligations within the scope of the ap-
plicable law. The Board may grant exceptions to the nominee 
ruling on a case-by-case basis.

Legal entities and legal communities connected by capital, 
voting rights, management or in any other way are regarded 
as a single purchaser, as are all natural persons, legal enti-
ties or legal communities acting in a coordinated manner by 
agreement, as a syndicate or in any other way with a view to 
circumventing the nominee ruling.

The company may cancel registrations in the share register 
and backdate such cancellation to the date of registration if 
such registrations are found to be based on false information 
given by the purchaser. In such cases, the purchaser must be 
informed immediately of the cancellation.

The registration restrictions described above also apply to 
shares bought or subscribed via the exercise of pre-emptive 
rights, conversion rights or options.
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Board of Directors

Members
The Board of Directors of Schaffner Holding AG is composed 
of five to seven members who must be shareholders.

Membership on September 30, 2009, was as follows: 

Leo Steiner, Chairman, 1943, Swiss 
Member since 2002, elected until 2010
Degree in Mechanical Engineering, Federal Institute of Tech-
nology, Zurich.
Until 2007 Delegate of the Board of Directors of Komax Hol-
ding AG, Dierikon, and Chief Executive Officer of the Komax 
Group, Dierikon.
Other mandates on the boards of companies:  
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Komax Holding AG; 
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Kardex AG, Zurich.

Hans Hess, 1955, Swiss 
Member since 2006, elected until 2010
Degree in Mechanical Engineering, Federal Institute of Tech-
nology, Zurich; MBA, University of Southern California.
From September 8, 2006, to March 31, 2007, Delegate of the 
Board of Directors ad interim of Schaffner Holding AG. Until 
2005 held a variety of management positions within the Leica
Group, most recently 10 years as Chief Executive Officer  
and Delegate of the Board of Directors of Leica Geosystems, 
Heerbrugg.
Other mandates on the boards of companies: 
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Burckhardt Compres-
sion Holding AG, Winterthur; Chairman of the Board of Comet
Holding AG, Flamatt; Chairman of the Board of Reichle &  
De-Massari Holding AG, Wetzikon; member of the Board of 
Directors of Geberit AG, Jona. 

Peter E. Rued, 1945, Swiss 
Member since 1998, elected until 2010
Degree in Engineering; Degree in Industrial Management, 
ISZ / SIB.
Former Delegate of the Board of Directors and Chief Execu-
tive Officer of the Phoenix Mecano Group (2000 to 2001), 
Stein am Rhein. Worked for the Phoenix Mecano Group from 
1982 to 2001.

Robert F. Spoerry, 1955, Swiss 
Member since 1998, elected until 2010
Degree in Mechanical Engineering, Federal Institute of Tech-
nology, Zurich; MBA, University of Chicago.
Chairman, Mettler-Toledo International Inc., Greifensee. 
Other mandates on the boards of companies:
Member of the Board of Directors of Conzzeta Holding AG, 
Zurich, Sonova Holding AG, Staefa, Holcim Ltd., Jona; 
Geberit AG, Jona.

Markus Zenhaeusern, 1962, Swiss 
Member since 2008, elected until 2012
Degree in Economics, University of St. Gallen; PhD, University 
of Fribourg. 
Chief Financial Officer and member of the Group Management 
of Swiss Post, Berne. Chief Financial Officer and member  
of the Executive Board of Sika Group, Baar, from 2005 to 2008. 
Previously Chief Financial Officer of North East Asia Ciba 
SC and the Habasit Group, Corporate Controller of the Hero 
Group and consultant and auditor with Coopers & Lybrand.
Other mandates on the boards of companies: 
Member of the Board of Directors of Swiss Post International 
Holding AG, Berne, and of Liechtenstein Post AG, Vaduz.

Herbert Baechler, 1950, Swiss 
Member since 2009, elected until 2012
Master of Science in Electrical Engineering (MSEE); PhD,  
Federal Institute of Technology, Zurich.
Responsible for innovation management of ARfinance Holding 
AG, Staefa; Senior Technical Advisor with Sonova / Phonak AG, 
Staefa. Between 2002 and 2008, Chief Technology Officer and 
from 1981 to 2002 in a number of management positions in 
Research and Development at Sonova / Phonak AG. 

Kurt Ledermann: Secretary to the Board 

Changes in the Board of Directors
Herbert Baechler was appointed as a new member of the 
Board of Directors of Schaffner Holding AG for three years at 
the Annual General Meeting on January 14, 2009.
 

Election and term of office
The members of the Board of Directors are elected by the 
Annual General Meeting for a term of up to three years. 
Members may offer themselves for reelection. The term of of-
fice for each member is determined upon his or her election. 
The term of office for the members of the Board of Directors 
elected at the 2009 Annual General Meeting is four years. The 
statutory maximum age is 70. The Board of Directors consti-
tutes itself. It appoints a Chairman and a Secretary, who does 
not have to be a member of the Board. 

Internal organization
The Board of Directors of Schaffner Holding AG is responsible 
for determining the Group’s strategy. It reviews the com-
pany’s underlying plans and objectives and identifies internal 
and external risks and opportunities. The tasks of the Board 
of Directors of Schaffner Holding AG and the division of pow-
ers between the Board and Group Management are defined 
in the Swiss Code of Obligations, the company’s articles of 
association and the organization regulations. 

The Board of Directors has a quorum when the majority of its 
members participates in spoken discussions and votes. Mem-
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bers may also be present on the telephone or via electronic 
media (e.g. videoconferencing). Resolutions are passed by a 
simple majority vote. If the vote is tied, the Chairman casts 
the deciding vote. The Board is authorized to pass resolu-
tions in connection with capital increases irrespective of the 
number of members present. The Board may also pass reso-
lutions regarding proposals submitted to it by written vote 
insofar as no member requests a spoken discussion. In this 
case, the resolution is passed if it is supported by the major-
ity of all Board members.

The Board of Directors convenes at least four times a year 
and generally holds a closed session once a year. It under-
takes to ensure that all members are reciprocally and com-
prehensively informed at all times.

The Board of Directors convened nine times in fiscal 2008 /  2009, 
including twice in the form of a telephone conference. All 
members of the Board were present except for one telephone 
conference where one member was absent. In addition, the 
Audit Committee met twice and the Compensation Com-
mittee once. The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial 
Officer attended all of the meetings of the Board of Directors 
and the Audit Committee. 
 

Committees
The Board of Directors of Schaffner Holding AG is supported 
by the committees detailed below. The committees are pri-
marily responsible for providing specialist input as the basis 
of decisions to be passed by the Board. The committees sup-
port the Board of Directors. The duties and powers assigned 
to the Board rest with the Board as a whole. 

The committees are made up exclusively of non-executive 
directors. They meet as often as necessary and inform the 
Board as to their findings and proposals at the normal Board 
meetings. They may also inform the Chairman of the Board 
or the Chief Executive Officer at any time on matters that 
require urgent attention. Outside the normal Board meetings, 
the directors who sit on the committees also work directly 
with Group Management. The term of office for committee 
members normally coincides with the term of office of their 
director’s mandate. If required, however, new committees 
can be created or existing ones newly appointed or disbanded. 

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee assists Group Management in dealing with 
financial matters. In particular, it provides the Board with expert 
opinions on the following Group Management responsibilities:

–  Accuracy and clarity of Group accounts.
–  The financial part of the annual budget.
–  The annual consolidated financial statements.
–  Other major tasks assigned to the finance  

department. 

The Audit Committee takes receipt of the reports submitted 
by the statutory and Group auditors on behalf of the Board 
and presents them to the Board for approval and opinions.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee has the following responsibilities:
– At the start of each term of office it submits proposals to 

the Board concerning the nature and amount of annual 
directors’ fees.

– It also submits proposals concerning the remuneration 
of each member of Group Management to the Board for 
approval on an annual basis.

– It defines the incentive programs.

The Compensation Committee also decides on the following 
on behalf of the Board:
– Applications for the promotion of employees to Group 

Management. 
– Applications for the recruitment or dismissal of Group 

Management members.

In the case of new recruits of Group Management members, 
members of the Compensation Committee participate in the 
assessment procedure.

Division of powers
Within the scope of the applicable legal and statutory pro-
visions, the Board of Directors has delegated operational 
management of the Schaffner Group to Group Management, 
chaired by the Chief Executive Officer. Group Management  
is responsible for implementing the Group‘s business policy 
in line with the guidelines set by the Board of Directors. 

Group Management information and controlling  
instruments
Group Management provides the Board with a monthly writ-
ten report on the Group‘s performance. The reports include 
details of the individual results of all Group companies, which 
are shown consolidated in the balance sheet and the income 
and cash flow statements. The figures are compared against 
the prior-year and budgeted figures. The Board discusses the 
monthly reports at its meetings. The Chief Executive Officer 
and Chief Financial Officer attend the meetings.

Term

Markus Zenhaeusern, Chairman 2008–2012

Hans Hess 2006–2010

Peter E. Rued 2002–2010

Term

Leo Steiner, Chairman 2002–2010

Robert F. Spoerry 2002–2010
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Group Management carries out risk assessments on behalf of 
the Board of Directors at regular intervals. General risks and 
the overall balance sheet positions are analyzed and evalu-
ated. Controlling points and processes are defined based on 
the risk assessment. These are executed by the management 
responsible for the process. The Board of Directors monitors 
the business risk assessment and checks the implementation 
of risk management.

Management principles and organization
Group Management is headed by the Chief Executive Officer 
and also includes the Chief Financial Officer and five Vice 
Presidents for Business Development Asia, Manufacturing, 
Research & Development, Sales Europe and Supply Chain 
Management. The Chief Executive Officer is in charge of Glo-
bal Marketing. Group Management is responsible for imple-
menting the Group‘s business policy in line with the require-
ments laid down by the Board of Directors, and in particular 
for achieving annual targets and implementing medium- and 
long-term goals. It is also responsible for process planning, 
controlling and implementing Group-wide standards.

The Chief Executive Officer formulates the Group strategy for 
the attention of the Board of Directors and is responsible for 
implementing the strategy. He sets the targets for all units of 
the Group.
 
The Chief Financial Officer defines the framework for all stra-
tegic and operational controlling activities, takes care of the 
Group’s financing, optimizes its financing and tax structure, 
and supports the Chief Executive Officer and the other Group 
Management members in all financial matters.

The Vice Presidents are responsible for achieving the targets 
set for their areas of authority. These include in particular 
achieving a leading market position and fostering continuous 
innovation to support long-term competitiveness. 

Group Management

Members
On September 30, 2009, the Schaffner Group Management 
comprised the following members:

Alexander Hagemann, 1962, German
Degree in Mechanical Engineering, RWTH Aachen University.
Joined the Schaffner Group as Chief Executive Officer on 
March 1, 2007.
Prior to that held a number of management positions with the 
Schott Group, including Executive Vice President, Optics for 
Devices; preceded by various management roles in the area 
of production and logistics at BMW.
 

Kurt Ledermann, 1968, Swiss
MSEE, Federal Institute of Technology, Zurich; Master of Arts, 
HSG.
Joined the Schaffner Group as Chief Financial Officer on June 1, 
2008.  
Previous roles include Executive Vice President, Finance & IT, 
RUAG Aerospace; Head of Finance & Accounting, Schaffner 
Group; Chief Financial Officer, Medivision; Group Controller 
and Head of Investor Relations, Sika Group. 

Fabian Beck, 1969, Swiss
MSEE, Federal Institute of Technology, Zurich; Executive Mas-
ter of Business and Engineering.
With the Schaffner Group since 1994, Vice President Research & 
Development since March 1, 2007.  
Previously Head of Research and Development, EMC Test 
Engineer, Quality Engineer and Applications Engineer.
 
Jean-Michel Calleri, 1956, French
Electrical Engineering Diploma ESIGELEC, Rouen; IESTO 
CNAM, Paris.
With the Schaffner Group since 1999, Vice President Sales 
Europe since July 1, 2007. General Manager of Schaffner EMC 
S.A.S., Argenteuil. 
Prior to that held a variety of management positions in Mar-
keting & Sales, Thomson Passive Components.

Ah Bee Goh, 1950, Singaporean
Honours Bachelor of Science in Production Engineering, Uni-
versity of Strathclyde; MSc in Industrial Engineering, National 
University of Singapore; MSc in Finance, University of Leices-
ter; MBA, University of Surrey.
Joined the Schaffner Group as Vice President Manufacturing 
on July 1, 2007. 
Previously Managing Director at Leica Instruments; various 
management roles at Maxtor Peripherals, Seagate Technology 
and Tandon / Western Digital.
 
Eduard Hadorn, 1956, Swiss
Business Economist.
With the Schaffner Group since 2003, Vice President Business 
Development Asia since March 1, 2007.
Managing Director, Schaffner EMC Ltd., Shanghai.  
Prior to that General Manager of the Technology Division, 
Diethelm & Co; Head of Marketing & Sales, Beringer Hydraulik.

Martin Koeppel, 1960, Swiss
Studies in Precision Engineering, Systems Engineering and 
Software Engineering.
Joined the Schaffner Group in 1996, Vice President Supply 
Chain Management since March 1, 2007.
Previously Head of Production Components and Modules and 
Head of Technology and Planning with the Schaffner Group; 
Project Manager, Swatch Group; Project Manager, Logotrans; 
responsible for Robotics at Schaffner Elektronik.
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Changes in Group Management
On April 1, 2009, Alexander Hagemann took over the manage-
ment of Global Marketing from Christian Stampfer, who left 
the company as of the same date. 
 

Management agreements 
Schaffner Holding AG and its Group companies have no man-
agement agreements with third parties. 

Compensation, shareholdings
and loans 

Content and determination of compensation and share 
option plans
The members of the Board of Directors receive fixed annual 
remuneration for their work, specifically for preparing and 
participating in meetings and serving on committees. The 
Compensation Committee determines the amount of the an-
nual compensation once a year.

The members of Group Management are compensated taking 
their duties, performance and the development of the busi-
ness into account. In addition to a fixed annual sum, their 
compensation contains a variable share of 24 to 40 percent 
of the salary, which depends mainly on the operating result. 
Based on proposals made by the Compensation Committee, 
the Board of Directors determines the amount of the Chief 
Executive Officer’s compensation once a year. The compen-
sation of the other members of the Group Management is set 
once a year based on proposals made by the Compensation 
Committee in collaboration with the Chief Executive Officer.

In the second half of fiscal 2008 / 2009, the cost of compen-
sation was significantly reduced as a result of a salary waiver 
at all management levels. The amount of the waiver was 
scaled between 10 percent for the Board of Directors and 
Group Management and 4 percent for lower middle managers. 

Since October 1, 1998, options to the value of CHF 500,000 
to CHF 900,000 on the purchase of registered shares in 
Schaffner Holding AG have been granted to key management 
members and the members of the Board of Directors every 
year under the Schaffner Share Option Plan. The options are 
allotted by the Board of Directors and are based on appraisals 
of individual performance. For further information, see note 
20 on page 32 of the notes to the consolidated financial state-
ments of the Schaffner Group. 

Shareholders’ rights

Limitation of voting rights and entry in the share register
Voting rights are not limited in any way. The Board of Direc-
tors specifies in the invitation to the Annual General Meeting 
the date by which entries must be made in the share register 
in order for the holder to participate and vote at the meeting. 
 

Statutory quorums
The articles of association contain no provisions that deviate 
from the applicable law. 

Convening and agenda of the Annual General Meeting
The agenda is sent out together with the invitations at least 
20 days before the Annual General Meeting. Decisions cannot 
be passed on unannounced agenda items unless an extraor-
dinary general meeting or special audit is called.

Changes in control and defense
measures

Offer obligation
The articles of association of Schaffner Holding AG contain 
neither an opting-out clause nor an opting-up clause. Any 
individual or entity acquiring one third (331⁄3  %) of the share 
capital of Schaffner Holding AG is obliged under Art. 32 of the 
Swiss Federal Act on Stock Exchanges and Securities Trading 
(SESTA) to submit a public offer to purchase the remaining 
shares. 
 

Clauses on changes of control
Upon a change of control (as defined below), any and all op-
tions then outstanding will become fully and immediately 
exercisable by members of the employee share option plan 
(Board of Directors, Group Management, middle managers 
and employees). For the purpose of this provision, “change of 
control” means any of the following:
– the acquisition, directly or indirectly, by any person or en-

tity of a number of shares in the company that, according 
to Art. 32 of the Swiss Federal Act on Stock Exchanges 
and Securities Trading (SESTA), would trigger the obliga-
tion to make an offer to acquire all listed shares of the 
company, or

–  the sale by Schaffner Holding AG of all or a substantial 
portion of the company’s assets. 
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Auditors

Duration of the mandate and term of office of the auditor-
in-charge
Ernst & Young AG, Berne, is elected for a period of one year.

Ernst & Young AG, Berne, has acted as the statutory and Group 
auditors of Schaffner Holding AG since fiscal 2002 / 2003.

Roland Ruprecht has been the auditor-in-charge since fiscal 
2002 / 2003. The auditor-in-charge may serve for a maximum 
of seven years. 
 

Audit fees
Ernst & Young AG charged the Schaffner Group fees totaling 
CHF 499,000 in fiscal 2008 / 2009 for services in connection 
with the auditing of the annual financial statements of Schaff-
ner Holding AG and the consolidated financial statements of 
the Schaffner Group.
 

Additional fees
In addition, Ernst & Young AG charged the Schaffner Group 
CHF 99,000 for other services:

Audit supervision and control instruments
The Audit Committee reviews the performance, fees and in-
dependence of the statutory auditors every year and makes  
a recommendation to the Board of Directors on which exter-
nal auditors should be proposed for appointment by the An-
nual General Meeting of Shareholders. The external statutory 
auditors report to the Board of Directors in a management 
letter prepared after year-end closing and in the reports of 
the Group auditors and statutory auditors. In addition, the 
Audit Committee makes an annual review of the scope of the 
external audit, audit plans and relevant processes and dis-
cusses the results of the audit with the external auditors. The 
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer also attend 
this meeting.
 

Tax consulting CHF 14,000

IT consulting CHF 34,000

ICS support CHF 27,000

Other CHF 24,000
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Consolidated financial statements
of the Schaffner Group
Consolidated balance sheet 

in CHF 1,000
Note 30.9.2009 (restated)

30.9.2008

Intangible assets 3 15,835 13,402

Tangible fixed assets 4 13,922 15,068

Other long-term assets 5, 23 13,130 13,594

Deferred income tax assets 17 626 563

Fixed assets 43,513 42,627

Inventories 6 25,368 30,077

Trade receivables 7, 23 21,371 34,124

Income tax receivables 1,099 679

Other receivables and accruals 8, 23 4,907 13,643

Cash and cash equivalents 23 30,625 26,928

Current assets 83,370 105,451

Total assets 19 126,883 148,078

Equity attributable to equity holders of Schaffner Holding AG 47,305 58,149

Shareholders‘ equity 47,305 58,149

Long-term provisions 9 6,305 4,375

Deferred income tax liabilities 17 3,653 4,054

Long-term borrowings 11, 23 0 49,520

Long-term liabilities 9,958 57,949

Short-term provisions 9 5,034 3,157

Short-term borrowings 11, 23 42,493 6

Income tax liabilities 754 1,613

Interest-free liabilities 12, 23 21,339 27,204

Short-term liabilities 69,620 31,980

Total liabilities 79,578 89,929

Total liabilities and shareholders‘ equity 126,883 148,078

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.   
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Consolidated income statement

in CHF 1,000
Note  2008 / 2009 (restated)

2007 / 2008

Net sales 18, 19 133,363 182,445

Cost of goods sold  –98,477  –128,159

Gross profit 34,886 54,286

Other income 0 1,803

Marketing and sales  –15,080  –17,101

Research, development and application  –11,645  –10,583

General and administration  –12,034  –13,814

Restructuring costs 10  –4,669 0

Earnings before amortization of customer relations  –8,542 14,591

Amortization of customer relations1 3  –651  –699

Operating result (EBIT)  –9,193 13,892

Financial income 16 2,515 3,230

Financial expenses 16  –4,897  –5,246

Earnings before income taxes (EBT)  –11,575 11,876

Income taxes 17 640  –2,521

Net loss / profit  –10,935 9,355

Earnings per share in CHF 21

basic  –18.04 15.43

diluted  –18.04 12.95

1 To be assigned to the marketing and sales line item taking into account the cost of sales method.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.   
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Consolidated cash flow statement

in CHF 1,000
Note  2008 / 2009 (restated)

2007 / 2008

Net loss / profit  – 10,935 9,355

Depreciation and impairment of tangible fixed assets 4 3,386 3,560

Amortization and impairment of other intangible assets 3 1,932 1,756

Result from sale of fixed and intangible assets 54 309

Change in provisions 9 2,580 2,086

Change in inventories 3,887  – 1,418

Change in accounts receivables1, 2 18,912  – 1,234

Change in short-term liabilities  – 5,268  – 6,769

Change in deferred income taxes 17  – 391  – 512

Financial expenses for convertible bond 841 976

Share-based payments 14 863 553

Translation differences from intra-Group positions  – 246  – 32

Release earn-out 0  – 1,598

Other non-cash income / expenses 189  – 286

Cash flow from operating activities2 15,804 6,746

Capital expenditure tangible fixed assets 4, 19  – 2,982  – 5,193

Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets1 120 3,873

Capital expenditure intangible assets 3, 19  – 2,251  – 2,055

Cash flow from divestment of a subsidiary or business2 0 682

Cash flow from acquisitions 2  – 2,347 0

Change in loans and long-term assets 148 598

Cash flow from investing activities2  – 7,312  – 2,095

Purchase of treasury shares 22  – 282  – 5,497

Sale of treasury shares 22 4,339 46

Proceeds from exercised options by employees 22 0 1,354

Transaction costs relating sale / purchase of treasury shares 22  – 216 0

Repayment of nominal value  – 2,114  – 1,814

Increase in borrowings 0 6

Repayment of borrowings  – 6,408  – 348

Cash flow from financing activities2  – 4,681  – 6,253

Translation differences on cash and cash equivalents  – 114  – 266

Change in cash and cash equivalents 3,697  – 1,868

Cash and cash equivalents opening balance 1.10. 26,928 28,796

Cash and cash equivalents closing balance 30.9. 30,625 26,928

Free cash flow3 10,691 3,371

Income and expenses included in cash flow from operating activities
Interest paid  – 1,275  – 1,340

Interest received 214 597

Income taxes paid  – 85  – 1,036

1  Previous period includes a deferred sales price payment of EUR 2.4 million for properties in Wertheim, Germany, sold 
in September 2007.

2 Previous period contains a deferred sales price payment from divestment of subsidiaries and businesses (TESEQ).
3 Cash flow from operating activities minus net capital expenditures in tangible fixed and intangible assets 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.  
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

1 CHF 3.00 per share 
2 CHF 3.50 per share  

in CHF 1,000
Share capital Capital reserves Cumulative trans-

lation differences
Retained earnings Treasury shares Total share- 

holders‘ equity

At 1.10.2007 24,802 57,888  – 2,143  – 23,722  – 5,115 51,710
Effect first-time application IFRIC 14 4,985 4,985

At 1.10.2007 (restated) 24,802 57,888 – 2,143  – 18,737  – 5,115 56,695
Translation differences  – 2,543  – 2,543

Net profit 9,355 9,355

Total income and expense 0 0  – 2,543 9,355 0 6,812
Treasury shares  – 363  – 5,088  – 5,451

Repayment of nominal value1  – 1,908 94  – 1,814

Stock option plans 553 1,354 1,907

At 30.9.2008 (restated) 22,894 58,441  – 4,686  – 9,651  – 8,849 58,149
Translation differences  – 4,168  – 4,168

Net profit  – 10,935  – 10,935

Total income and expense 0 0  – 4,168  – 10,935 0  – 15,103
Treasury shares  – 3,197 7,038 3,841

Repayment of nominal value2  – 2,226 112  – 2,114

Allotment of restricted shares  – 89 270 181

Stock option plans 863 863

Conversion and redemption of 
convertible bond 22 1,466 1,488

At 30.9.2009 20,668 59,326  – 8,854  – 23,760  – 75 47,305

Share capital
The share capital of Schaffner Holding AG is presented by 
635,940 registered shares with a par value CHF 32.50 each. 
The share capital is fully paid in. Each share grants the owner 
one vote at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.  
All shares not held by the company or one of its subsidiaries  
are dividend-bearing. The share capital was reduced by  
CHF 2,225,790 as per April 3, 2009, owing to the repayment of 
the nominal value of CHF 3.50 per share.

There is also conditional share capital of 211,340 shares with 
a total nominal value of CHF 6,868,550. Thereof 190,000 reg-
istered shares (CHF 6,175,000 nominal) are dedicated to the 
convertible bond (see note 11, page 27) and 21,340 registered 
shares (CHF 693,550 nominal) are assigned for the employee 
share option plan (see note 20, page 32).

Capital reserves
The capital reserves consist of the premium for the share 
capital paid. The increase in the capital reserves in the year 
under review is a result of the grant of conversion rights  
from the employee share option plan and allotted restricted 
shares (see note 20, page 32). 

Cumulative translation differences
Historical rates apply to shareholders’ equity. The resulting 
foreign exchange differences have no effect on financial  
income up to the point of disposal of the subsidiary company 
and are shown in the shareholders’ equity as a separate  
line item.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consoli-
dated financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial 
statements

Consolidation and valuation 
principles

Principles
The consolidated financial statements are based on the indi-
vidual financial statements of the Schaffner Group companies 
and Schaffner Holding AG as of September 30, drawn up 
in accordance with the uniform guidelines of the Schaffner 
Group. 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared 
using the historical cost convention except that, as disclosed 
in the accounting policies below, certain items, including 
derivatives and available-for-sale investments, are shown at 
fair value. The financial statements have been prepared in 
conformity with the International Financial Reporting Stand-
ards (IFRS).

The Schaffner Group used the same principles as in the previ-
ous year. Newly issued and amended standards and inter-
pretations are an exception to this rule. The Schaffner Group 
introduced the following changes on October 1, 2008:
IFRIC 14 – IAS 19 – The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Mini-
mum Funding Requirements and their Interaction: IFRIC 14 is 
an interpretation of international accounting standard IAS 19. 
IAS 19 governs the reporting of employee benefits – in par-
ticular the calculation of pension costs and obligations a com-
pany has entered into with regard to its employees. Under 
this standard the economic benefit an entity derives from the 
reduction of future pension plan contributions must be rec-
ognized in the balance sheet. IFRIC 14 defines a new method 
for calculating this economic benefit, which for Schaffner has 

resulted in an increase in capitalized pension surplus. First- 
time application of IFRIC 14 for the 2008 / 2009 financial year 
has resulted in an adjustment of previous years’ figures as 
well. Accordingly, the retained earnings as per October 1, 
2007, increased by CHF 5.0 million and net profit for 2007 / 2008 
increased by CHF 0.5 million (see note 24, page 39).

In addition amendment to IFRIC 9 and IAS 39 – Embedded 
Derivatives: Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives, intro-
duction of IFRIC 12 – Service Concession Arrangements,  
IFRIC 13 – Customer Loyalty Programmes and IFRIC 16 – Hedges 
of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation, amendment to 
IAS 39 – Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 
and IFRS 7 – Financial Instruments: Disclosures.

These standards have no effect on the consolidated balance 
sheet or income statement of the Schaffner Group, as they 
are either simply disclosure regulations or are of little signifi-
cance to the Schaffner Group.

IFRS standards applicable after the balance sheet date 
The following new and revised standards and interpretations 
have been issued, but are not yet effective. They have not 
been applied early in these consolidated financial statements. 
Their impact on the consolidated financial statements of 
Schaffner Group has not yet been systematically analyzed. 
However, a preliminary assessment has been conducted and 
the expected impact of each standard and interpretation is 
presented in the table below.

Standard / Interpretation 

Assess-
ment

Effective date Planned application by 
Schaffner Group

IFRIC 15 – Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate * 1.1.2009 2009 / 2010

IFRIC 17 – Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners * 1.7.2009 2009 / 2010

IFRS 8 – Operating Segments ** 1.1.2009 2009 / 2010

IAS 1 Amended – Presentation of Financial Statements ** 1.1.2009 2009 / 2010

IAS 23 – Borrowing Costs * 1.1.2009 2009 / 2010

IFRS 3 Amended – Business Combinations *** 1.7.2009 2009 / 2010

IAS 27 Amended – Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements *** 1.7.2009 2009 / 2010

IFRS 2 Amended – Vesting Conditions and Cancellations ** 1.1.2009 2009 / 2010

IAS 32 and IAS 1 Amended – Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on 
Liquidation * 1.1.2009 2009 / 2010

IFRS 1 and IAS 27 Amended – Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled 
Entity or Associate * 1.1.2009 2009 / 2010

IAS 39 Amended – Eligible Hedged Items * 1.7.2009 2009 / 2010

IFRIC 18 – Transfers of Assets from Customers * 1.7.2009 2009 / 2010

IFRS 7 Amended – Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments ** 1.1.2009 2009 / 2010

IFRS 2 Amended – Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions ** 1.1.2010 2010 / 2011

IFRS 1 Amended – Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters * 1.1.2010 2010 / 2011

 * No impact or no significant impact is expected on the consolidated financial statements.
 ** The impact on the consolidated financial statements is expected to result in additional disclosures or changes in   
  presentation.
*** The impact on the consolidated financial statements cannot yet be determined with sufficient reliability.
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Estimates
The consolidated financial statements of Schaffner contain 
assumptions and estimates which affect the reported finan-
cial position, financial performance and cash flows. These 
assumptions and estimates were made on the basis of Man-
agement’s best knowledge at the time of preparation of the 
accounts. Actual results could differ from the values reported. 
The following estimates have the largest effects on the con-
solidated accounts:
– Intangible assets: For acquisitions, the fair value of the 

acquired net assets (including acquired intangible assets) 
is estimated. Any amount paid in excess of this estimate 
represents goodwill. Intangible assets with a finite life are 
amortized over the expected period of use; those with 
an indefinite life (primarily goodwill) are not amortized, 
but are tested annually for impairment. The valuation 
of goodwill and other intangibles and the estimation of 
useful life have an effect on the consolidated financial 
statements.

–  Provisions: Provisions are recognized only if the specific 
criteria under IFRS are met. Provisions represent pre-
sumed obligations arising from a past event and are rec-
ognized only if their amount can be estimated reliably. 
Nevertheless, provisions are based on assumptions, which 
may later turn out to be incorrect.

–  Income taxes: The Schaffner Group is subject to income 
tax in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgment is re-
quired in determining the worldwide provision for income 
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for 
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during 
the ordinary course of business.

Explanation of terms
A Group company is a company over which Schaffner Holding 
AG, Luterbach, directly or indirectly, exercises control. An as-
sociated company is a company on which Schaffner Holding 
AG, Luterbach, directly or indirectly, exercises a significant 
influence. Long-term borrowings refer to all liabilities with 
maturities of more than one year, and short-term borrowings 
refer to all liabilities with maturities of one year or less. Short-
term borrowings also include those parts of long-term finan-
cial liabilities maturing within one year. All interest-bearing 
liabilities are included under borrowings. The financial state-
ments are denominated in Swiss francs.

Consolidation principles
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the finan-
cial statements of Schaffner Holding AG and of the Group 
companies and associated companies. Group companies are 
consolidated using the full consolidation method. Applying 
this method, 100  % of assets and liabilities and of income and 
expenses are included, and the interests of minority share-
holders are reported separately in the balance sheet and 

income statement. The purchase and sale of minorities is 
recognized directly in equity according to the entity concept 
method. Associated companies are consolidated under the 
equity method with the pro rata shareholders’ equity in the 
balance sheet and the pro rata profit in the income statement.

Intra-Group assets and liabilities as well as income and ex-
penses are set off against each other. Intra-Group intermedi-
ate profits on inventories and fixed assets are eliminated. 

Companies acquired during the reporting period are included 
in the consolidated financial statements effective from the 
actual date of their acquisition. Similarly, companies disposed 
of during the reporting period remain included in the con-
solidated financial statements until the transaction has been 
effectively completed.

Foreign-currency translation
All assets and liabilities in the balance sheets of foreign Group 
companies drawn up in foreign currency are translated at 
the year-end rate (qualifying date rate) in Swiss francs (CHF). 
Expenses, income and cash flows are translated at average 
exchange rates into Swiss francs, which correspond approxi-
mately to the actual transaction rates. Translation differences 
arising from the application of different exchange rates for 
the balance sheet and the income statement are posted to 
Group retained earnings and are shown in the statement of 
shareholders’ equity as cumulative translation differences. 

Foreign-currency transactions 
Foreign currency transactions by Group companies are 
translated at the market rate prevailing at the time. The as-
sets and liabilities concerned are translated at the year-end 
rates. Gains and losses arising from the transactions as well 
as from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities in 
foreign currencies are recorded as income or expenses in the 
income. 

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are valued at historical production or ac-
quisition cost. Apart from goodwill, these are amortized over 
their estimated useful life using the straight-line method as 
follows:

 

Acquisitions and goodwill 
Companies are consolidated from the date at which control is 
acquired. The identifiable assets, liabilities and contingencies 
are revalued and included according to the purchase method. 
Any difference between the cost of acquisition and the net 

Trademark, technology and rights 10 years

Software 3–8 years

Customer relations 10 years
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assets acquired constitutes goodwill assessed for impairment 
yearly. Any impairment is recorded in the income statement. 
Goodwill is impaired accordingly. If a subsidiary is sold, the 
difference between the selling price and the net assets, plus 
the cumulated translation differences, is reported as operat-
ing profit in the consolidated income statement.

Research and development costs
Development costs for new products are not capitalized, 
since a future economic benefit can only be proven after suc-
cessful market introduction. Development costs for software 
are capitalized under intangible assets on condition that it will 
generate profit in the future through being either sold or used 
within the company and that its production cost can be reli-
ably estimated. Other conditions that must be met concern 
the technical feasibility, the intention and ability to complete 
the development, and the availability of sufficient resources. 

Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis using es-
timated useful economic life. Potential impairment of the 
capitalized production costs is tested annually if the software 
is not yet being used, or more frequently if there are justified 
indications of loss of value.

Tangible fixed assets 
Tangible fixed assets are valued at historical production or 
acquisition cost and depreciated over their estimated useful 
life, using the straight-line method:

Leasing agreements under which a Group company assumes 
substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership are clas-
sified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the 
market value of the asset or, if lower, at the present value 
of the lease payments. At the same time the corresponding 
leasing obligations are included in borrowings. The interest 
part of the leasing rates is charged to the income statement. 
Payments made under operating leasing agreements are 
charged to the income statement in equal installments over 
the life of the contract.
 

Impairment of assets
The recoverable amount of an asset is estimated as soon as 
signals of an impairment of an asset occur. If the assets are 
carried at an amount higher than the recoverable amount, 
the impairment of the asset is recorded in the income state-
ment. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net 

selling price and its value in use, which corresponds to the 
present value of the estimated future cash flow. 

Inventories
Purchased products are valued at acquisition cost while own 
manufactured products are valued at manufacturing cost in-
cluding related production expenses. For simplicity, inventory 
is valued at standard cost in the balance sheet. This value 
is also used in the income statement for the cost of goods 
sold. Provisions are made for inventories with a lower market 
value, or which are slow-moving. Unsalable inventory is fully 
written off. Inventory is valued at net realizable value at most. 

Trade receivables
The balance sheet carrying value corresponds to the nominal 
value less appropriate value adjustments for claims where re-
covery is difficult or impossible (provision for doubtful debts).

Short-term investments
These are split into two positions: marketable securities and 
other securities. Marketable securities contain shares listed 
on the stock exchange and are valued at market value. Other 
securities are valued if possible at market price, or otherwise 
at cost. Treasury shares are presented as a deduction from 
equity.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, deposits 
on postal and bank accounts as well as call and short-term 
deposits, with original maturity of up to 90 days. 

Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a third-party 
obligation as a result of past events, a reliable estimate of the 
amount of the obligation can be made and it is probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obliga-
tion. Provisions for warranty claims are made based on busi-
ness experience.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the 
amount of a provision will be recognized with the present 
value of the expenditure expected. 

Revenue recognition
Sales are recognized after transfer of risk and reward. 

Pension obligations
The Schaffner Group operates several pension plans through-
out the world. The pension plans are generally funded by pay-
ments from employees and by the relevant Group companies, 

Land none

Buildings 10–50 years

Machinery and equipment 5–10 years

Furniture and fixtures 5–10 years

Vehicles 3–6 years

EDP hardware 3–5 years

Tools 1–5 years
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taking account of the recommendations of independent quali-
fied actuaries. The accumulated assets of the plans are nor-
mally held in separate trustee-administered funds. If the assets 
are not held in such funds, then those assets whose purpose 
is to secure future pension obligations are recognized as other 
long-term assets in the balance sheet, and the corresponding 
pension obligation is shown in provisions.

For defined benefit plans, the future pension costs are as-
sessed by applying the projected unit credit method. Under 
this method, the cost of providing pensions is charged to the 
income statement so as to spread the regular cost over the 
expected service lives of employees in accordance with the 
advice of qualified actuaries who carry out the valuations of 
the plans. The Schaffner Group’s contributions to the defined 
contribution plans are charged to the income statement in the 
year to which they relate. Actuarial gains or losses are am-
ortized in the income statement over the remaining average 
service years.
 

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognized in the period in which they 
have incurred. 

Segment reporting
After the divestment of the Test Systems segment two years 
ago, Schaffner operates only in the business field Compo-
nents and Modules and knows only one primary segment. 
The products are homogeneous and do not differentiate into 
separate product segments. The secondary segmentation is 
by geographic area. There were no transactions between the 
divisions.

All assets and liabilities were assigned to the segment Com-
ponents and Modules on September 30, 2009.

Income taxes 
Tax accruals are made on the basis of reported profits for the 
period for which they are payable. They are calculated in con-
formity with the tax laws prevailing in the individual countries. 
Deferred taxes are recognized in accordance with the com-
prehensive liability method. Thus, the impact on income taxes 
from temporary differences arising from differences between 
Group values and the corresponding tax basis is recorded  
as either noncurrent liability or noncurrent asset, using the 
effective or the expected local tax rates. The change in de-
ferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income tax. 
Deferred income tax liabilities are calculated on all taxable 
temporary differences. Deferred income tax assets including 
assets for unused tax loss carry-forwards are only recognized 
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will 
be available against which the asset can be utilized.

Financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are classified into the following
categories:
–  Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (assets  
 classified as held for trading, and certain financial assets  
 and liabilities designated as falling into the category). 
–  Financial investments held to maturity.
–  Loans and receivables.
–  Financial instruments available for sale, which include all  
 financial instruments not assignable to one of the above- 
 mentioned categories.
–  Financial liabilities mainly comprise financial debts, which  
 are valued at their (discounted) costs. Liabilities arising   
 from trading activities and derivatives are valued at market  
 value.

The first-time valuation of the financial assets is recognized at 
purchase cost, including transaction costs (exception: financial 
assets at fair value through profit and loss are recognized  
excluding transaction costs). All purchases and sales of 
financial assets are recognized on their trading date. Financial 
assets at fair value through profit and loss are recorded at 
market value. Any value adjustments are recorded in financial 
income / expenses for the respective reporting period. Finan-
cial instruments held to maturity, loans and receivables are val-
ued by the effective interest rate method or at purchase cost. 

Financial instruments available for sale are recognized at 
market value, changes in market value (after income tax) 
being recorded in shareholders’ equity. At the time of sale, 
impairment, or other disposal, the accumulated gains and 
losses recorded in shareholders’ equity are reported in finan-
cial income / expenses for the current period.

Assets included in the balance sheet at a value other than 
market value are tested for impairment when indications of 
possible impairment exist. Financial assets are derecognized 
when Schaffner gives up its control over them. Financial liabi-
lities are derecognized when they are repaid.

Long-term financial liabilities are valued by the effective inter-
est method. The interest expenses therefore include not only 
the actual interest payments, but also the annual discounted 
amounts and pro rata transaction costs.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at 
their purchase price including transaction costs. Sales and 
purchases are recorded on the date of trading and subse-
quently carried at market value.
 

Share-based payments
The fair value of the granted options is calculated using the 
Enhanced American Model (sophisticated binomial model)  
at the grant date. The fair values for options were expensed 
over the relevant vesting periods, adjusted to reflect actual 
and expected levels of vesting.
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1 Foreign currencies
The following exchange rates were applied for the translation 
of foreign currencies:

Balance sheet Income statement

Country Currency
30.9.2009

in CHF
30.9.2008

in CHF
 2008 / 2009

in CHF
2007 / 2008

in CHF

UK GBP 100 165.81 199.83 171.81 211.82

Japan JPY 100 1.15 1.06 1.17 1.00

Singapore SGD 100 73.51 78.25 75.61 76.71

Sweden SEK  100 14.87 16.24 14.28 17.19

Thailand THB  100 3.10 3.30 3.21 3.37

USA USD 100 103.58 112.41 111.36 107.60

EU EUR  100 151.63 158.23 150.71 161.87

China CNY 100 15.17 16.42 16.30 15.18

Hungary HUF 100 0.56 0.65 0.54 0.65

Taiwan TWD 100 3.23 3.48 3.35 3.43

2 Business combination
On January 5, 2009, the Schaffner Group took over employees, 
technology and assets of the German BETEC-Engineering, 
which specializes in the development and distribution of 
Bluewave™ active harmonic filters. The purchase price con-
sists of an initial cash payment of CHF 2.3 million and a de-
ferred payment of 10  % of net sales generated with in-house 
manufactured active harmonic filters during the following 
three calendar years. The deferred payment is calculated ap-

plying an up-to-date business plan and recognized as a provi-
sion in the amount of CHF 1.5 million (see note 9, page 26).

In accordance with IFRS 3.62, accounting of the acquisition 
was of a provisional nature in the interim report of March 31, 
2009. The balance sheet as at September 30, 2009, incorpo-
rates more information concerning the purchase price alloca-
tion, within the context of the evaluation of the fair values.

Acquired net assets in CHF 1,000
Book value Fair value

adjustments
Fair value

Intangible assets 22 2,354 2,376

Tangible fixed assets 304 304

Inventories 830 320 1,150

Total purchase price 3,830

Offset by:

Cash 2,272

Deferred consideration 1,483

Directly attributable costs 75

Net cash outflow in the reporting period 2,347

Net cash outflow expected in the periods 2009 / 2010 to 2011 / 2012 1,483

Effective net sales since the acquisition amount to  
CHF 1.4 million and net loss amounts to CHF 0.9 million. If  
the acquisition had taken place on the first day of the  
fiscal year, recorded net sales would have been CHF 1.1  
million higher and net loss CHF 0.5 million higher.

For further information on the scope of consolidation, see 
page 40.
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3 Intangible assets

in CHF 1,000

Trademark, 
technology and 

rights

Software Goodwill Customer 
relations

Intangible
assets under
construction

Total

Historical cost 1.10.2007 1,200 4,016 4,817 7,149 0 17,182
Capital expenditure 13 72 1,654 1,739

Internally developed 316 316

Disposals – 187 – 187

Translation differences – 68 62 – 333 – 339

Historical cost 30.9.2008 958 4,150 4,817 6,816 1,970 18,711
Capital expenditure 354 1,096 1,450

Additions from acquisitions 2,354 22 2,376

Internally developed 801 801

Disposals – 51 – 51

Reclassifications 3,862 – 3,862 0

Translation differences – 40 – 24 – 284 – 348

Historical cost 30.9.2009 3,272 8,313 4,817 6,532 5 22,939

Accumulated amortization 1.10.2007 – 743 – 2,485 0 – 656 0 – 3,884
Amortization – 181 – 876 – 699 – 1,756

Disposals 163 24 187

Translation differences 75 23 46 144

Accumulated amortization 30.9.2008 – 686 – 3,314 0 – 1,309 0 – 5,309
Amortization – 326 – 954 – 651 – 1,931

Disposals 45 45

Translation differences 28 13 50 91

Accumulated amortization 30.9.2009 – 984 – 4,210 0 – 1,910 0 – 7,104

Net book value 30.9.2008 272 836 4,817 5,507 1,970 13,402
Net book value 30.9.2009 2,288 4,103 4,817 4,622 5 15,835

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been 
allocated to the cash-generating unit Components and Mod-
ules. The recoverable amount has been determined based 
on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections 
covering a 5-year period based on financial budgets approved 
by the Group Management and the Board of Directors for the 
 fiscal 2009 / 2010 and a supplementary multiyear forecast. 
Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using 
a 0  % growth rate. The pre-tax discount rate applied is 14.7  % 
and is based on a risk-free 10-year bond adjusted for risk.

Trademarks and technology were capitalized the first time at 
January 5, 2009, using the royalty rate method for valuation  
of the trademark “Bluewave” and the technology “active har-
monic filters” acquired with BETEC-Engineering. Trademark 
and technology are amortized over the estimated useful life 
of 10 years, using the straight-line method.

Customer relations were capitalized the first time at Novem-
ber 3, 2006, using the excess earnings method for valua-
tion of the existing customers at acquisition date of Schaffner 
Jacke GmbH. Customer relations are amortized over their  
estimated useful life of 10 years, using the straight-line meth-
od. As per September 30, 2009, the remaining amortization 
period is seven years and one month.

A project with the objective of a new implementation of a 
Group-wide SAP system has been launched during the last  
reporting period. Until going life of the system the external 
and internal expenditures will be capitalized as intangible 
assets under construction and will not be amortized. Going 
life of the first stage took place during the actual reporting 
period. Useful life of the core system will be five years, of the 
country specific programming eight years.

In the consolidated income statement amortization of intan-
gible assets is assigned to cost of goods sold, marketing and 
sales, research, development and application, general and 
administration as well as amortization of customer relations.
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4  Tangible fixed assets

in CHF 1,000
Land and 
buildings

Machinery and 
equipment

EDP
hardware

Furniture and 
fixtures

Vehicles Assets under 
construction

Total

Historical cost 1.10.2007 8,094 28,111 5,429 2,861 1,706 111 46,312
Capital expenditure 141 3,138 529 210 640 535 5,193

Disposals – 84 – 2,273 – 1,336 – 321 – 391 – 4,405

Reclassifications 160 529 2 – 139 – 552 0

Translation differences – 432 – 1,077 – 95 – 124 – 48 – 10 – 1,786

Historical cost 30.9.2008 7,879 28,428 4,529 2,487 1,907 84 45,314
Capital expenditure 429 1,929 68 117 134 305 2,982

Additions from acquisitions 295 9 304

Disposals – 491 – 197 – 21 – 164 – 60 – 933

Reclassifications 10 65 8 – 83 0

Translation differences – 488 – 1,429 – 104 – 142 – 114 – 3 – 2,280

Historical cost 30.9.2009 7,830 28,797 4,296 2,450 1,771 243 45,387

Accumulated depreciation 1.10.2007 – 4,626 – 19,207 – 4,635 – 2,410 – 903 0 – 31,781
Depreciation – 459 – 2,271 – 373 – 203 – 254 – 3,560

Disposals 29 2,028 1,226 258 239 3,780

Reclassifications – 139 139 0

Translation differences 273 799 73 140 30 1,315

Accumulated depreciation 30.9.2008 – 4,783 – 18,790 – 3,709 – 2,076 – 888 0 – 30,246
Depreciation – 498 – 2,045 – 276 – 156 – 217 – 3,192

Disposals 445 191 18 114 768

Impairment1 – 194 – 194

Reclassifications 0

Translation differences 328 829 79 116 47 1,399

Accumulated depreciation 30.9.2009 – 4,953 – 19,755 – 3,715 – 2,098 – 944 0 – 31,465

Net book value 30.9.2008 3,096 9,638 820 411 1,019 84 15,068
Net book value 30.9.2009 2,877 9,042 581 352 827 243 13,922

Tangible fixed assets are covered under a Group-wide insur-
ance contract. The maximum insured amount is CHF 70 million 
per claim. As at September 30, 2009, there were commitments 
to purchase tangible fixed assets of CHF 916,000 (previous 
year: CHF 1,703,000). Neither in the current fiscal year nor in 
the previous year were assets impaired or existing impair-
ments reversed. 

Operating leases
The future minimum payments under non-cancelable operat-
ing leases (mainly rent for office and production space) are as 
follows:

1 Impairment of machinery is in relation with the restructuring as of September 30, 2009 (see note 10, page 26)

in CHF 1,000 30.9.2009 30.9.2008

Within 1 year 3,753 3,255

Between 1 and 5 years 10,321 10,506

Thereafter 4,212 6,679

Total minimum annual payments for operating leases 18,286 20,440

Total minimum earnings from subleases 267 312

In 2008 / 2009 the total operating lease expenses were  
CHF 4,217,000 (previous year: CHF 3,944,000). 

The total sublease income in 2008 / 2009 were CHF 45,000 
(previous year CHF 45,000).
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5 Other long-term assets

in CHF 1,000
30.9.2009 (restated)

30.9.2008

Present value of defined benefit assets and IFRIC 141 10,806 10,820

Deposits and guarantees 2,324 2,774

Total 13,130 13,594

1 See note 15, page 28

6 Inventories

in CHF 1,000 30.9.2009 30.9.2008

Raw materials 14,688 14,323

Work in process and semi-finished goods 3,035 2,893

Finished goods 7,645 12,861

Total 25,368 30,077

Inventory write-downs 

in CHF 1,000  2008 / 2009 2007 / 2008

Opening balance 3,719 3,111
Additions 1,085 1,588

Usage – 430 – 253

Reversal unused amounts – 306 – 580

Translation differences – 183 – 147

Closing balance 3,885 3,719

7 Trade receivables

in CHF 1,000 30.9.2009 30.9.2008

Debtors 21,678 34,696

Provision for doubtful debts – 307 – 572

Total 21,371 34,124

8 Other receivables and accruals

in CHF 1,000 30.9.2009 30.9.2008

Other receivables 3,981 12,950

Accruals 926 693

Total 4,907 13,643
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in CHF 1,000  2008 / 2009

Cost of goods sold 3,880

Marketing and sales 266

Research, development and application 189

General and administration 334

Restructuring costs 4,669

9 Provisions

in CHF 1,000
Warranty

provisions
Provisions for em-

ployee benefits1

Provisions for 
restructuring2

Other provisions Total

Balance 1.10.2007 364 3,975 0 2,479 6,818
Additions 383 2,441 2,824

Usage – 20 – 171 – 18 – 209

Reversal of unused amounts – 15 – 1,626 – 1,641

Translation differences – 18 – 189 – 53 – 260

Balance 30.9.2008 311 3,998 0 3,223 7,532
Additions 564 546 4,076 898 6,084

Additions from acquisitions 1,483 1,483

Usage – 66 – 400 – 1,936 – 316 – 2,718

Reversal of unused amounts – 92 – 76 – 618 – 786

Translation differences – 17 – 162 – 77 – 256

Balance 30.9.2009 700 3,906 2,140 4,593 11,339

Long-term provisions 30.9.2008 243 3,948 184 4,375

Short-term provisions 30.9.2008 68 50 3,039 3,157

Total provisions 30.9.2008 311 3,998 0 3,223 7,532
Long-term provisions 30.9.2009 134 3,871 717 1,583 6,305

Short-term provisions 30.9.2009 566 35 1,423 3,010 5,034

Total provisions 30.9.2009 700 3,906 2,140 4,593 11,339

In the case of short-term provisions, the outflow of resources 
is expected within 12 months. The long-term provisions 
mature only after 12 months and the expected cash flows are 
discounted in the event of a significant interest rate effect.

Other provisions include provisions for custom risks in France 
(CHF 1,046,000) and deferred consideration concerning 
BETEC-Engineering (CHF 1,483,000) (see note 2, page 22). 
Furthermore a provision for an additional income tax pay-
ment out of a tax audit in Germany has been made. The pay-
ment for custom and tax risks and the short-term part of the 
deferred consideration of CHF 257,000 will fall due within 12 
months. The principal cash flow from other provisions is ex-
pected to accrue in one to three years.

Warranty provisions will fall due between one and ten years.

10 Restructuring 
The consolidated income statement of 2008 / 2009 contains 
restructuring costs of CHF 4.7 million, including staff sever-
ance payments and outplacement costs from restructuring 
of the human resource capacity worldwide and the decision 
to cease the remaining production activities in Switzerland 
in the total amount of CHF 2.7 million. Additionally, costs of 
untenanted free production space after the restructuring of 
production in Luterbach in the amount of CHF 1.8 million  
are included as well concerning impairment costs for fixed 
assets and inventory in the amount of CHF 0.2 million. 

If these amounts would not be assigned to the line restructur-
ing costs there would be the following split:

1 See note 15, page 28
2 See note 10, page 26 

As at September 30, 2009, the restructuring provisions con-
tain an amount of CHF 0.8 million for costs concerning  
the decision to cease the remaining production activities in 

Switzerland, as well as CHF 1.3 million for untenanted free 
production space.
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in CHF 1,000 30.9.2009 30.9.2008

Maturing within 1 year 42,493 6

Maturing within 2 years 0 49,520

Total 42,493 49,526

11 Borrowings
The average interest rate on loans amounted to 4.3  % in fiscal 
2008 / 2009 (previous year: 4.7  %).

The maturity of the long-term borrowings is shown in the fol-
lowing table:

Outstanding convertible bond
On January 28, 2004, Schaffner Holding AG issued a 2.25  % 
convertible bond with a principal amount of CHF 49.4 million 
and final redemption after six years (2004–2010). The con-
version price determined in a book-building procedure was 
CHF 260, which corresponded to a conversion ratio of 3.846 
shares of Schaffner Holding AG per convertible bond with a 
par value of CHF 1,000 each.

In accordance with Art. III Section 5 (d), (i) of the issue pro-
spectus, the conversion price and the conversion ratio will be 
reduced in the event of certain conditions. This resulted in an 
adjustment of the conversion price on January 29, 2007, from 
CHF 260 to CHF 238.32. The difference between the previous 
and new conversion price will be paid in cash by the issuer in 
the event of conversion. The repayment of nominal value on 
April 5, 2007, resulted in a adjustment of the conversion price 
to CHF 232.16 and an adjustment of the conversion ratio to 

3.948 shares per convertible bond. The further repayment 
of nominal value as at April 3, 2009, resulted in an additional 
adjustment of the conversion price to CHF 230.96 and an ad-
justment of the conversion rate to 3.969 shares per convert-
ible bond.

In 2008 / 2009 convertible bonds with a principal amount of 
CHF 1.6 million were converted and bonds with a principal 
amount of CHF 6.3 million were redeemed. The conversion 
was settled with treasury shares (CHF 1.5 million) and cash 
(CHF 0.1 million).

The follow-up financing of the ending convertible bond on 
January 28, 2010, is guaranteed due to a credit agreement 
with four banks with CHF 10 million credit limit each. This 
credit agreement is linked to covenants.

As at September 30, 2009, no credit limits are used.

12 Interest-free liabilities

in CHF 1,000 30.9.2009 30.9.2008

Trade payables 11,570 12,267

Other short-term liabilities 3,432 4,938

Accrued liabilities 6,337 9,999

Total 21,339 27,204

13 Contingent liabilities
As the Group is active internationally, there are inherent tax 
risks (for example for transfer prices) that cannot currently 

be estimated. Consequently, no provision has been made for 
them.
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14 Personnel expenses and number of employees

in CHF 1,000
 2008 / 2009 (restated)

2007 / 2008

Salaries and wages 38,345 43,408

Termination benefits 367 304

Share-based payments 863 553

Social and other costs 8,323 11,534

Pension plans – defined benefit plans 1,744 1,132

Total personnel expenses 49,642 56,931

Number of employees in full-time equivalents (average) 1,808 2,318

15 Post-employment and other long-term employee  
benefits

Apart from state pension plans there exist plans in the Group 
which are classified as defined benefit plans under IAS 19. 
The present value of obligations was evaluated by specialized 
actuaries as per September 30, 2009, and is to be reviewed 
every year. Actuarial gains or losses are amortized in the in-
come statement over the remaining service years, if in excess  
of a corridor of 10  %. A pension surplus is capitalized if over-
funding of a pension plan generates an economic benefit in 
accordance with IAS 19. In this case the economic benefit 
from future reductions in contributions is measured in accord-

ance with the guidelines in IFRIC 14. The greater part of the 
assets is funded in organizations legally independent of the 
company. If the plan is unfunded, the relevant assets and  
liabilities are shown in the balance sheet.

The curtailment and settlement shown in the actual period is 
concerning the termination of production in Switzerland.

The recognition of an impairment on the pension asset  
(CHF 503,000) is necessary because the decision to cease 
the remaining production activities in Switzerland ends up  
in a partial liquidation based on Swiss pension law.

in CHF 1,000
2008 / 2009 (restated)

2007 / 2008

Funded plans
Fair value of defined benefit assets 33,634 40,066

Present value of defined benefit obligations – 28,910 – 35,496

Unrecognized part of defined benefit assets 0 0

Actuarial gains / losses 4,176 4,185

Impairment due to restructuring – 503 0

Pension assets 8,397 8,755

Unfunded plans and employee benefits
Provision for employee benefits – 3,469 – 3,516

Present value of obligations recognized – 3,469 – 3,516

Other
Other benefits for employees – 437 – 482

Present value of obligations recognized – 437 – 482
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in CHF 1,000
2008 / 2009 (restated)

2007 / 2008

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Opening balance – 39,494 – 40,269

Current service cost of employer – 1,540 – 1,704

Contributions by the participants – 705 – 671

Interest cost – 1,336 – 1,532

Actuarial gains and losses – 999 1,412

Effect of curtailment / divestment 9,722 0

Benefits paid 1,376 3,088

Translation differences 160 182

Closing balance – 32,816 – 39,494

Fair value of defined benefit assets
Opening balance 40,066 45,969

Expected return on defined benefit assets 1,570 2,104

Actuarial gains and losses – 156 – 6,804

Contributions by the employer 1,198 1,140

Contributions by the participants 705 671

Effect of curtailment / divestment – 8,493 0

Benefits paid – 1,256 – 3,014

Closing balance 33,634 40,066

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit assets (from reinsurance) 2,409 2,065

Pension assets 8,397 8,755

Provisions for employee benefits – 3,469 – 3,516

Other benefits for employees – 437 – 482

Expenses recognized in income statement
Current service cost of employer – 1,540 – 1,704

Interest cost – 1,336 – 1,532

Expected return on defined benefit assets 1,570 2,104

Effect of curtailment / divestment 84 0

Recognized actuarial gain / loss – 19 0

Impairment due to restructuring – 503 0

Total – 1,744 – 1,132

Actual return on defined benefit assets 4.2  % – 11.7  %

Discount rate 3.5  % 4.0  %

Expected rate of return 3.6 % 4.3 %

Expected rate of salary increases 1.4 % 1.5 %

Expected rate of pension increases 0.5 % 0.5 %

Experience gains / losses on defined benefit obligations 1.2 % 3.5 %

Categories of defined benefit assets
Equity instruments 9,831 11,711

Debt instruments 14,796 17,625

Property 4,174 4,972

Other assets 4,833 5,758

Total fair value of defined benefit assets 33,634 40,066

The expected return on assets is based on the asset alloca-
tion as at beginning of the year and the following expected 
returns per asset class: cash 1.2 %, Swiss bonds 2.05 %, 
foreign currency bonds 2.3 %, mortgages 2.75 %, real estate 

3.9 %, Swiss shares CHF 6.4 %, foreign currency shares 6.1 %, 
others 4.2 %. Returns in subsequent year are expected to be 
on the same level as in the reporting period.
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The employer’s contributions to staff pension funds are 
 estimated at CHF 1.5 million for 2009 / 2010 (current fiscal 
year: CHF 1.9 million).

Multiyear comparison

in CHF 1,000  2008 / 2009 2007 / 2008 2006 / 2007 2005 / 2006 2004 / 2005

Fair value of plan assets 33,634 40,066 45,969 46,560 44,351

Present value of obligations – 32,816 – 39,494 – 40,269 – 38,804 – 42,814

Surplus 818 572 5,700 7,756 1,537

Experience gains / losses on defined benefit assets – 0.5 % – 17.0 % 2.0 % 4.6 % 4.4 %

Experience gains / losses on defined benefit obligations 1.2 % 3.5 % – 2.2 % 0.3 %

16 Financial result
Financial income

in CHF 1,000  2008 / 2009 2007 / 2008

Interest income 214 599

Currency gains 2,301 2,631

Total 2,515 3,230

Financial expenses

in CHF 1,000  2008 / 2009 2007 / 2008

Interest expenses – 1,979 – 2,307

Currency losses – 2,626 – 2,895

Other financial expenses – 292 – 44

Total – 4,897 – 5,246
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17 Income taxes

in CHF 1,000
 2008 / 2009 (restated)

2007 / 2008

Actual income taxes for the fiscal year – 443 – 2,037

Changes in income taxes for other periods arising in the fiscal year (net) 692 – 996

Current income taxes  249 – 3,033

Current income taxes  249 – 3,033

Deferred income taxes  391 512

Income taxes  640 – 2,521

Deferred income taxes are made up of deferred income taxes 
of CHF 450,000 (previous year: CHF 457,000) on account of 
the addition and reversal of temporary valuation differences 
and of deferred income taxes of CHF –59,000 (CHF 55,000) 
owing to the change of the applicable tax rate.

Unused income tax losses for which no deferred income tax 
asset has been capitalized:

in CHF 1,000 30.9.2009 30.9.2008

Expiry in 1 year 0 137

Expiry in 2 years 141 151

Expiry in 3 years 56 61

Expiry in 4 years 257 276

Expiry in 5 years 1,542 481

Expiry in more than 5 years 30,496 18,816

Total 32,492 19,922

Reconciliation from earnings before income taxes (EBT) to 
effective income tax expenses:

in CHF 1,000
 2008 / 2009 (restated)

2007 / 2008

EBT as per income statement – 11,575 11,590
Applicable tax rate 19 % 19 %

Expected tax at applicable tax rate 2,237 – 2,218

Effect of not capitalized current year tax losses – 2,310 – 1,131

Effect of tax rates other than applicable tax rate 167 120

Effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes – 361 – 1,240

Effect of earnings which are not taxable 391 2,432

Utilization of unrecognized prior year’s tax losses / gains 82 397

Income taxes from prior years 692 – 996

Others – 258 115

Income taxes as per income statement 640 – 2,521

The applicable tax rate is calculated as the weighted average 
of the local applicable tax rates. 
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in CHF 1,000
30.9.2009 (restated)

30.9.2008

Intangible assets – 1,604 – 1,941

Tangible fixed assets – 525 – 464

Other long-term assets – 1,662 – 1,819

Inventories 376 326

Trade receivables – 20 – 152

Provisions 306 404

Interest-free liabilities 102 155

Income tax losses 0 0

Deferred income tax assets / liabilities – 3,027 – 3,491

Whereof shown as deferred income tax liabilities in balance sheet – 3,653 – 4,054

Whereof shown as deferred income tax assets in balance sheet 626 563

18 Segments by divisions
After the divestment of the Test Systems segment two years 
ago, Schaffner operates only in the business field Components 

and Modules and knows only one primary segment. The prod-
ucts are homogeneous and do not differentiate into separate 
product segments.

30.9.2009 (restated)
30.9.2008

in CHF 1,000
Components 
and Modules

Total Components 
and Modules

Total

Third-party net sales 133,363 133,363 182,445 182,445

Segment result – 9,193 – 9,193 13,892 13,892
Financial result – 2,382 – 2,016

Income taxes 640 – 2,521

Net loss / profit – 10,935 9,355

Assets 126,883 126,883 148,078 148,078

Liabilities – 79,578 – 79,578 – 89,929 – 89,929

Net assets 47,305 47,305 58,149 58,149

Capital expenditures 5,233 5,233 7,248 7,248

Depreciation / amortization – 5,318 – 5,318 – 5,316 – 5,316

Other non-cash expenses – 3,632 – 3,632 – 1,588 – 1,588

19 Segments by region

30.9.2009 (restated)
30.9.2008

in CHF 1,000 Europe Asia USA Total Europe Asia USA Total

Third-party net sales 88,628 35,940 8,795 133,363 137,364 32,411 12,670 182,445

Assets 94,323 30,253 2,307 126,883 114,250 30,031 3,797 148,078

Capital expenditures 3,660 1,572 0 5,233 5,401 1,847 0 7,248

20 Employee share option plan 
Since October 1, 1998, share options have been granted to 
members of the Board of Directors and key management mem-
bers, giving them the right to purchase shares in Schaffner 
Holding AG. The awarding of share options is regulated by 
the Schaffner Holding AG Employee Share Option Plan 1998 
(ESOP), before and after the changes of November 13, 2006, 

and by the Schaffner Holding AG Performance Option Plan 
(POP) which base themselves on conditional share capital 
in the amount of CHF 693,550 representing 21,340 shares in 
Schaffner Holding AG with a nominal value of CHF 32.50 each, 
as well as on treasury shares.
– Employee Share Option Plan (ESOP) before the changes of 

November 13, 2006: before the changes of November 13, 

Deferred income tax liabilities / assets are allocated to the  
following balance sheet positions as per September 30:
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2006, the beneficiaries of the ESOP (equity settled) were 
allowed to exercise properly 20 % of the options granted 
to them one year after having received the options, and 
another 20 % in each consecutive year. After five years, all 
granted options could be exercised properly. The options 
were vested over three years in equal shares. This resul-
ted in different vesting periods for each share. Options 
expired after 10 years at the latest.

– Employee Share Option Plan (ESOP) after the changes of 
November 13, 2006: after the changes of November 13, 
2006, the beneficiaries of the ESOP (equity settled) are 
allowed to exercise properly 25 % of the options granted 

to them one year after having received the options, and 
another 25 % in each consecutive year. After four years, 
all granted options can be exercised. The options vest 
over four years in equal shares. Options expire after 
seven years at the latest.

– Performance Option Plan (POP): the beneficiaries of the 
POP (equity settled) are allowed under the circumstance 
of a compliance of the non-vesting conditions to exercise 
properly 100 % of the options granted to them when the 
performance target is reached in September 30, 2013. 
Options expire after five years at the latest.

2008 / 2009 2007 / 2008

Outstanding share 
options

Number of options

Average
exercise price

in CHF

Outstanding share 
options

Number of options

Average
exercise price

in CHF

Opening balance 52,924 260 58,721 249

Granted 36,350 154 7,900 260

Exercised 0 0 – 7,649 177

Expired / cancelled – 2,073 211 – 6,048 265

Closing balance 87,201 217 52,924 260

Thereof exercisable 40,289 270 33,928 281

Thereof covered by conditional capital 21,340 21,340

Thereof covered by treasury shares 323 31,584

Thereof uncovered 65,538 0

Share options with an exercise price of CHF 153.50 (Novem-
ber 14, 2008) were granted in the 2008 / 2009 fiscal year 
(previous year: CHF 260). The earliest exercise date of the op-
tions granted in 2008 / 2009 is November 14, 2009, and 
the options expire on November 14, 2015, respectively on 
November 14, 2018.

The conditions of the share options outstanding at the end of 
the fiscal year were as follows:

30.9.2009 30.9.2008

Number of options Exercise price
in CHF

Number of options Exercise price
in CHF

Expiry date 11.01.2009 0 208.00 360 208.00

Expiry date 25.11.2009 4,813 212.50 4,813 212.50

Expiry date 01.12.2010 600 465.00 600 465.00

Expiry date 15.12.2010 5,600 543.00 5,600 543.00

Expiry date 25.06.2011 600 472.00 600 472.00

Expiry date 04.12.2011 7,500 295.50 7,500 295.50

Expiry date 20.11.2012 3,982 159.00 3,982 159.00

Expiry date 14.11.2013 5,150 212.00 5,750 212.00

Expiry date 24.11.2013 5,407 192.00 5,407 192.00

Expiry date 17.04.2014 500 250.00 500 250.00

Expiry date 09.11.2014 6,987 260.00 7,600 260.00

Expiry date 29.11.2014 5,618 180.00 5,618 180.00

Expiry date 11.11.2015 4,594 180.00 4,594 180.00

Expiry date 14.11.2015 10,850 153.50

Expiry date 14.11.2018 25,000 153.50

Total 87,201 52,924

At the balance sheet date 3,982 options are in the money (previous year: 6,538 options). The necessary treasury shares 
to cover exercisable options is constantly monitored and adapted.
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The Enhanced American Model (sophisticated binomial  
model) used to determine the fair value of the options 
granted is based on the following parameters:

 2008 / 2009 2007 / 2008

ESOP
Grant date 
14.11.2008

POP
Grant date 
14.11.2008

ESOP
Grant date 
9.11.2007

Share price at grant date in CHF 153.5 153.5 260

Expected volatility1 37.51 % 37.51 % 38.61 %

Expected dividend yield 0.58 % 0.58 % 0.64 %

Risk-free interest rate 2.36 % 2.68 % 2.98 %

Expected lifetime of the option 5.07 years 7.85 years 5.07 years

Expected exit rate per year after blocking period 5.00 % 5.00 % 5.00 %

Strike in CHF 153.5 153.5 260

Fair value in CHF 52.28 64.11 90.96

In the fiscal 2008 / 2009, CHF 771,000 (previous year:  
CHF 520,000) were charged to the income statement.

As at April 8, 2008, 850 restricted shares were allocated to 
the key people in the ongoing SAP project. This allotment will 
take effect provided that the beneficiaries are still employed 
at Schaffner on June 30, 2011, and are not under notice on 
that date, and that they have worked successfully on the SAP 
project during that period. Two persons left the company in 
the fiscal 2008 / 2009. Thereof the market value for 108 shares 
was recognized immediately.

The market value of these restricted shares of CHF 248.70 per 
share will be charged to the income statement over a period 
of 39 months. The amount charged to the income statement 

in the reporting period came to CHF 75,000 (previous year: 
CHF 33,000).

As at January 28, 2009, 620 restricted shares were allocated 
to the key people of the acquired BETEC-Engineering. These 
shares are fully entitled to vote and dividend. The allotment 
will take effect provided that the beneficiaries are still em-
ployed at Schaffner after four years.

The market value of these restricted shares of CHF 145 per 
share will be charged to the income statement over a period 
of four years. The amount charged to the income statement  
in the reporting period came to CHF 17,000 (previous year:  
CHF 0).

21 Earnings per share

in CHF 1,000
 2008 / 2009 (restated)

2007 / 2008

Basic earnings per share
Net loss/profit after minority interests in CHF 1,000 – 10,935 9,355

Weighted average number of outstanding shares (dividend-bearing) 606,124 606,317

Basic earnings per share in CHF – 18.04 15.43

Diluted earnings per share
Net loss/profit after minority interests in CHF 1,000 – 10,935 9,355

Interest on convertible shares in CHF 1,000 0 1,112

Net loss/profit adjusted for the effects of the convertible shares in CHF 1,000 – 10,935 10,467

Relevant number of outstanding share options 0 6,989

Convertible shares, number of shares 0 195,031

Adjusted weighted average number of outstanding shares, number of shares 606,124 808,337

Diluted earnings per share in CHF – 18.04 12.95

The diluted earnings per share take the dilution effects of a 
potentially complete conversion of employee share options, 
the convertible bond and of the restricted shares allotted to 
employees.

In the actual year the interest on the convertible shares and 
the number of convertible shares from the convertible bond 
floated in 2004, the number of outstanding share options and 
restricted shares were not included in the calculation of the 
diluted earnings per share, as this would have resulted in an 
antidilutive effect.

1 The expected volatility is calculated from historical, long-term volatilities. These volatilities are based on daily returns 
between Schaffner‘s IPO (June 1998) and the respective grant date. The annualization of the volatility assumes 252 
trading days.
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22 Treasury shares

Number of shares Average rate  
per share in CHF

At average rate
in CHF 1,000

At 1.10.2007 23,027 222 5,115
+ Purchase1 23,053 5,497

– Sale1 – 180 – 46

– Shares used for employee share option plan1 – 7,649 – 1,354

Valuation differences – 363

At 30.9.2008 38,251 231 8,849
+ Purchase1 1,280 282

– Sale1 – 30,984 – 4,339

– Shares used for restricted shares program1 – 1,908 – 270

– Shares used for conversion of convertible bond1 – 6,316 – 1,466

Valuation differences – 3,197

Transaction costs directly recognized in equity 216

At 30.9.2009 323 231 75

1 At actual rates

23 Financial instruments
The Schaffner Group has a variety of financial assets, such as 
cash and cash equivalents and receivables and accruals, aris-

ing directly from its own trading and other long-term assets. 
Market value of financial assets does not differ from book 
value.

Financial assets

in CHF 1,000
Cash and cash 

equivalents
Receivables 

and accruals
Other long-

term assets1

Total 
book value

Total 
market value

Receivables and loans 30,625 26,278 2,324 59,227 59,227

Total financial assets 30.9.2009 30,625 26,278 2,324 59,227 59,227

Receivables and loans 26,928 47,767 2,774 77,469 77,469

Total financial assets 30.9.2008 26,928 47,767 2,774 77,469 77,469

The Schaffner Group’s main financial liabilities comprise the 
outstanding convertible bond and trade payables. These 
financial liabilities are principally intended to secure the 
financing of the Group’s business. For the evaluation of the 
market value of the convertible bond, included in financial 

liabilities, the corresponding quotation on the balance sheet 
date was used. Market value of all other financial liabilities 
does not differ from book value.

Financial liabilities

in CHF 1,000
Long-term 

borrowings
Short-term 
borrowings

Interest-free 
liabilities

Total 
book value

Total 
market value

At historical cost 0 42,493 21,339 63,832 63,702

Total financial liabilities 30.9.2009 0 42,493 21,339 63,832 63,702

At historical cost 49,520 6 27,204 76,730 76,264

Total financial liabilities 30.9.2008 49,520 6 27,204 76,730 76,264

1 Without defined benefit assets and IFRIC 14
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in CHF 1,000
Receivables and loans Financial liabilities at 

historical cost
Total

Book value 30.9.2009 59,227 63,832
Interest income / expenses 214 – 1,979 – 1,765

Currency gains / losses – 325 – 325

Other financial income / expenses – 292 – 292

Change in provision for doubtful debts 265 265

Net gain / loss in income statement – 138 – 1,979 – 2,117
Net gain / loss in shareholders’ equity1 – 804 – 804

Total net gain / loss 2008 / 2009 – 942 – 1,979 – 2,921

Book value 30.9.2008 77,469 76,730
Interest income / expenses 599 – 2,307 – 1,708

Currency gains / losses – 264 – 264

Other financial income / expenses – 44 – 44

Change in provision for doubtful debts 86 86

Net gain / loss in income statement 377 – 2,307 – 1,930
Net gain / loss in shareholders' equity1 – 1,580 – 1,580

Total net gain / loss 2007 / 2008 – 1,203 – 2,307 – 3,510

1 From valuation of equity-like loans

The most significant risks in connection with the Group’s 
financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency 
risk and credit and liquidity risk. The Audit Committee ap-
proves and reviews the guidelines for controlling all these 
risks, which are summarized below.

Interest rate risk 
The Schaffner Group’s exposure to the risk of change in inter-
est rates relates primarily to short-term interest-bearing fi-
nancial assets. No hedging activities (such as interest swaps) 
were carried out in the reporting period. The Schaffner Group 
is actually not exposed to interest rate risk caused by long-

term and short-term borrowings. The follow-up financing 
of the ending convertible bond on January 28, 2010, will in-
crease the interest rate risk. This is because these credits are 
linked to the Libor. The Group manages its interest expenses 
and income using deposits.

The sensitivity of earnings before income taxes to a reason-
ably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables 
held constant, is shown in the following table. The respective 
range of fluctuation during the specific reporting period was 
applied for the change in interest rates in base points. The 
effect on earnings before income taxes mainly derives from 
interest-bearing assets.

 2008 / 2009 2007 / 2008

in CHF 1,000

Decrease
in base
points

Effect on EBT Decrease
in base
points

Effect on EBT

CHF 80 – 173 30 – 46

EUR 115 – 57 55 – 71

USD 85 – 16 100 – 10

With a corresponding increase in interest rates, the effect on 
EBT is reciprocal.

Foreign currency risk 
Because of its worldwide activities and global alignment, the 
Schaffner Group is exposed to currency risks arising from 
the purchase and sale of goods in foreign currencies which 

are not invoiced in the functional currency of the respective 
subsidiary. The foreign currency risk incurred in operational 
business can be partially reduced by purchasing and selling in 
the corresponding foreign currency (natural hedging). The fol-
lowing table shows the sensitivity of the earnings before in-
come taxes and equity to a reasonable possible change in the 
exchange rate in the euro, US dollar and Thai bath to Swiss 
francs, with all other variables held constant.
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 2008 / 2009 2007 / 2008

in CHF 1,000
Increase

in %
Effect on EBT Effect on 

equity
Increase

in %
Effect on EBT Effect on 

equity

EUR / CHF 4 – 297 572 6 712 1,044

USD / CHF 10 270 67 9 234 76

THB / CHF 8 – 347 0 12 – 535 0

With a corresponding decrease in exchange rates, the effect 
on EBT and equity is reciprocal.

The respective range of fluctuation during the specific report-
ing period was applied for the change in the exchange rates 
in percentage. The effect on earnings before income taxes 
derives from usage of changed exchange rates for transla-
tion of material positions of financial instruments which are 
recognized in other currency than the functional currency of 
the corresponding subsidiary. The effect on equity derives 
from currency fluctuation of equity-like loans between Group 
companies in euro and US dollar.

Credit risk

Cash and cash equivalents
The Schaffner Group is exposed to losses from credit risks if 
financial institutions do not fulfill their obligations. In order to 
minimize this risk, the Group divides up its liquid assets over 
a variety of banks and invests only in secure investments with 
a low default risk.

The table below shows the balance of the three major coun-
terparties at the balance sheet date.

Creditworthy third-parties

30.9.2009 30.9.2008

in CHF 1,000 Rating Balance Rating Balance

Bank A A 7,582 A 13,036

Bank B A 6,429 A+ 7,842

Bank C AAA 6,061 AA– 1,243

Other counterparties 10,491 4,750

Total cash and cash equivalents (without cash in hand) 30,563 26,871

Trade receivables
The Schaffner Group produces a wide range of products. Its 
customer base is large in number and broadly distributed all 
over the world, limiting cluster risks in trade receivables. The 
receivables outstanding and payment terms are regularly as-
sessed and monitored locally by the Group companies.

Overdue receivables are accounted for by individual value 
adjustments on the base of experienced data. Receivables 
are only written off, if there is adequate evidence that no pay-
ment can be expected any more. Past shows that the risk of 
bad debt losses can be classed as relatively low.

Provision for doubtful debts

in CHF 1,000  2008 / 2009 2007 / 2008

Opening balance 572 767
Addition 40 304

Usage 0 – 281

Reversal of unused amounts – 274 – 163

Translation differences – 31 – 55

Closing balance 307 572
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The maturity structure of outstanding trade receivables is as 
follows:

Total Not overdue Overdue

in CHF 1,000 < 30 days 30 to 60 days 61 to 90 days > 90 days

Trade receivables 30.9.2009 21,371 16,987 2,761 587 248 788

Trade receivables 30.9.2008 34,124 28,912 2,830 984 410 988

Maximum credit risk of Schaffner Group as per September 30, 
2009, amounts to CHF 59.2 million (previous year: CHF 77.5 
million) and includes all financial assets.

Liquidity risk
The liquidity risk describes the danger that the Schaffner 
Group can no longer fully meet its financial obligations. The 

Schaffner Group monitors its liquidity risk and tries to avoid  
liquidity bottlenecks through prudent liquidity management. 
In addition, bottom-up rolling liquidity and cash flow fore-
casts are generated with a planning horizon of six months. 

The following table summarizes the maturity structure of  
the Schaffner Group’s financial liabilities as at September 30,  
on the basis of contractual, undiscounted payments. 

Book value Total Cash outflow

in CHF 1,000 < 1 month 1 to 3 months 3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years

Short-term financial liabilities 63,832 64,428 9,010 7,701 47,717 0

Total financial liabilities 30.9.2009 63,832 64,428 9,010 7,701 47,717 0

Long-term financial liabilities 49,520 52,365 0 0 1,112 51,253

Short-term financial liabilities 27,210 27,210 10,031 9,976 7,203 0

Total financial liabilities 30.9.2008 76,730 79,575 10,031 9,976 8,315 51,253
  

Capital management
With its capital management Schaffner Group has the objec-
tive to ensure the continuation of the company and constant-
ly increase its value. The Group’s financial management uses 
a system of key figures. These control parameters, which are 
tailored to the business model, relate to liquidity, growth and 
profitability.

To monitor the capital structure, the Schaffner Group uses 
the gearing ratio, i.e. the ratio of net debt to shareholders’ 
equity. The capital structure is designed in the way, that equi-
ty covers the business risk and ensures the financial flexibility 
of the company. In medium term free cash flows have to be 
able to amortize all financial liabilities.

in CHF 1,000
30.9.2009 (restated)

30.9.2008

Long-term borrowings 0 49,520

Short-term borrowings 42,493 6

Cash and cash equivalents – 30,625 – 26,928

Net debt 11,868 22,598

Shareholders‘ equity 47,305 58,149

Gearing ratio 25 % 39 %
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24 Change in accounting and valuation principles
IFRIC 14 is an interpretation of international accounting standard 
IAS 19. IAS 19 governs the reporting of employee benefits –  
in particular the calculation of pension costs and obligations a 
company has entered into with regard to its employees.  
Under this standard the economic benefit an entity derives 
from the reduction of future pension plan contributions  
must be recognized in the balance sheet. IFRIC 14 defines a 
new method for calculating this economic benefit, which  
for Schaffner has resulted in an increase in capitalized pension 
surplus. The pension surplus is recorded under other long-
term assets.

First-time application of IFRIC 14 for the 2008 / 2009 financial 
year has resulted in an adjustment of previous years’ figures 
as well. Accordingly, the retained earnings as per Sept-
ember 30, 2007, increased by CHF 5.0 million and net profit  
of 2007 / 2008 increased by CHF 0.5 million. To record actuari-
al gains and losses from pension plans Schaffner uses the  
corridor approach. Consequently, the application of IFRIC 14 
since it was first applied has resulted in changes in the con-
solidated balance sheet, the consolidated income statement 
and the consolidated equity for the 2007 / 2008 financial year. 
The effects are shown in the following table:

Effects of the first-time application of IFRIC 14

in CHF 1,000
Published Effect first-time

application IFRIC 14
Restated

Consolidated balance sheet 30.9.2007
Other long-term assets 7,072 6,990 14,062

Deferred income tax liabilities 2,880 2,005 4,885

Shareholders’ equity 51,710 4,985 56,695

Consolidated income statement 2007 / 2008
Cost of goods sold – 128,289 130 – 128,159

Marketing and sales – 17,124 23 – 17,101

Research, development and application – 10,639 56 – 10,583

General and administration – 13,891 77 – 13,814

Income taxes – 2,782 261 – 2,521

Net profit 8,808 547 9,355

Consolidated balance sheet 30.9.2008
Other long-term assets 6,318 7,276 13,594

Deferred income tax liabilities 2,310 1,744 4,054

Shareholders' equity 52,617 5,532 58,149

25 Related parties
In 2008 / 2009 no receivables and payables due from and to 
related parties exist. All business transactions with related 
parties have been held “at arm’s length”.

Compensation of Group Management and Board of  
Directors
The following compensation has been paid to members of the 
Group Management:

in CHF 1,000
 2008 / 2009 (restated)

2007 / 2008

Short-term payments (regular compensation) 2,123 2,959

Termination benefits 128 0

Expenses for share-based payments1 452 228

Contribution to pension plan 172 209

Total 2,875 3,396
 
1 The expenses for the granted options are split over the vesting period (see note 20, page 32). The market value of the options 

granted in the actual financial year of 29,350 options with an exercise price of CHF 153.50 (previous year: 2,950 options with an 
exercise price of CHF 260) is CHF 1,830,000 (previous year: CHF 268,000).
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The increase of share-based payments includes CHF 0.2 mil-
lion from the grant of options of the performance option plan 
(POP, see note 20, page 32). The beneficiaries are allowed  
to exercise 100 % of the options granted to them when the 
performance target is reached in September 30, 2013.  
Additionally, the beneficiaries are obligated to purchase a  
defined number of shares of Schaffner Holding AG (non-
vesting condition). There is only one grant date intended in 
this option plan.

In addition, CHF 268,000 (previous year: CHF 254,000) has 
been paid and 3,000 (previous year: 1,750) options at a strike 
price of CHF 153.50 (previous year: CHF 260) have been al-
located during fiscal 2008 / 2009 to the members of the Board 
of Directors.

Information according to the Swiss Code of Obligations on 
compensation of Group Management and Board of Directors 
can be found in the notes to the financial statements of the 
Schaffner Holding AG on page 44.

Swiss pension funds
Legally independent funds provide for Swiss pensions. In the 
fiscal 2008 / 2009 CHF 1.9 million (previous year: CHF 1.8 million) 
was paid to these funds. At the balance sheet date,   a receiv-
able of CHF 69,367 (previous year: receivable of   CHF 53,583) 
was outstanding. The Swiss pension fund did not own any 
Schaffner shares.

26 Risk assessment
The Board of Directors of Schaffner Holding AG assesses the 
corporate risks within the framework of a systematic risk 
identification and analysis. Based on this assessment, mea-
sures for risk management in the company are defined and 
constantly monitored. The company has a risk management 
system which is designed for the prompt identification  
and analysis of risks as well as the initiation of corresponding 
measures.
 

27 Release of the consolidated financial statements for 
publication

The consolidated financial statements were released for 
publication by the Board of Directors of Schaffner Holding AG 
on December 7, 2009. The consolidated financial statements 
are subject to the approval of the Annual General Meeting on 
January 13, 2010. 
 

28 Events after the balance sheet date
No events have occurred after the accounting closing date 
that would have a significant effect on the figures in the con-
solidated financial statements. 
 

29 Companies of the Schaffner Group
The following companies were included in the Schaffner 
Group’s scope of consolidation as of September 30, 2009:

Company Base Capital in 1,000 Holding in  %

Schaffner Holding AG CH-Luterbach CHF 20,668 100

 Schaffner Trading AG CH-Luterbach CHF 250 100

 Schaffner EMV AG CH-Luterbach CHF 14,000 100

 Schaffner Oy FI-Lohja EUR 34 100

 Schaffner EMC S.A.S. FR-Illzach EUR 5,330 100

 Schaffner Ltd. UK-Wokingham GBP 260 100

 Schaffner EMC Systems Ltd. UK-Capel GBP  1,300 100

 Schaffner EMV Hungary Kft. HU-Kecskemét HUF 8,000 100

 Schaffner EMC S.r.l. IT-Milan EUR 100 100

 Schaffner Jacke GmbH DE-Bueren EUR 375 100

 Schaffner EMC AB SE-Sollentuna SEK 200 100

 Schaffner EMC Inc. US-Edison N.J. USD 1,030 100

 Schaffner EMC Ltd. CN-Shanghai CNY 52,815 100

 Schaffner EMC K.K. JP-Tokyo JPY 10,000 100

 Schaffner EMC Pte. Ltd. Singapore SGD 1,200 100

 Schaffner EMC Co. Ltd. TH-Lamphun THB 140,000 100

 Schaffner EMV Ltd. (Taiwan Branch) TW-Taipei TWD 5,000 100

 Schaffner Deutschland Holding GmbH DE-Karlsruhe EUR 25 100

 Schaffner EMV Deutschland Holding GmbH & Co. KG DE-Karlsruhe EUR 1,000 100

 Schaffner EMV GmbH DE-Karlsruhe EUR 511 100

 Schaffner Electrotest GmbH DE-Karlsruhe EUR 2,045 100

The organizational chart of the German companies will be 
simplified retroactively to September 30, 2008. Therefore the 
liquidation of Schaffner Electrotest GmbH and a merger of 

the four remaining German companies were initiated. At the 
accounting closing date these transactions were not finally 
completed.
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Schaffner Group

Report of the Group auditors

To the General Meeting of Schaffner Holding AG, Luterbach
As statutory auditor, we have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Schaffner Holding AG, which com-
prise the balance sheet, income statement, cash flow statement, statement of changes in equity and notes (pages 14 to 40) for 
the year ended September 30, 2009.

Board of Directors’ responsibility
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in ac-
cordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the requirements of Swiss law. This responsibility includes 
designing, implementing and maintaining an internal control system relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consoli-
dated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Board of Directors is 
further responsible for selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are reason-
able in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards and International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are 
free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated finan-
cial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the au-
ditor considers the internal control system relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control system. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made, as well as evaluating the overall presenta-
tion of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2009, give a true and fair view of the  
financial position, the results of operations and the cash flows in accordance with IFRS and comply with Swiss law.

Report on other legal requirements
We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Oversight Act (AOA) and independence (ar-
ticle 728 Code of Obligations (CO) and article 11 AOA) and that there are no circumstances incompatible with our independence.

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm that an internal control 
system exists, which has been designed for the preparation of consolidated financial statements according to the instructions of 
the Board of Directors.

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved.

Berne, December 7, 2009

Ernst & Young Ltd

  
Roland Ruprecht  Marc Christen
Licensed audit expert   Licensed audit expert
(Auditor-in-charge)
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Financial statements
of the Schaffner Holding AG
Balance sheet

Income statement

in CHF 1,000 30.9.2009 30.9.2008

Loan Schaffner EMV AG 48,050 48,050

Investments 85,251 85,251

Fixed assets 133,301 133,301

Receivables from Group companies 250 4,961

Receivables from third parties and accruals 198 88

Short-term investments and deposits 49 7,408

Cash and cash equivalents 5,861 83

Current assets 6,358 12,540

Total assets 139,659 145,841

Share capital 20,668 22,894

Legal reserves 339 339

Reserve for treasury shares 75 8,849

Share premium 50,357 50,357

Retained earnings 19,021 10,533

Net loss of the fiscal year – 1,062 – 288

Shareholders’ equity 89,398 92,684

Liabilities to Group companies 6,301 1,024

Long-term borrowings 12 0

Convertible bond 42,709 50,553

Other third-party liabilities 230 135

Accrued liabilities 1,009 1,445

Total liabilities 50,261 53,157

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 139,659 145,841

in CHF 1,000  2008 / 2009 2007 / 2008

Other income 4,210 5,415

Total income 4,210 5,415

Personnel expenses – 2,274 – 2,475

Operating expenses – 2,130 – 2,190

Interest expenses – 1,019 – 1,364

Other financial expenses – 1,977 – 1,714

Interest income 2,129 2,089

Currency gains / losses from financing (net) – 1 2

Income taxes 0 – 51

Net loss – 1,062 – 288
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Schaffner Holding AG

Notes to the financial statements

As a result of the Group value-added tax system for the 
Swiss companies, there is a joint liability for the tax owed by 
the value-added tax Group in favor of the Swiss federal tax 
authority.

Ordinary share capital
CHF 20,668,050, divided into 635,940 registered shares with 
a nominal value CHF 32.50 each. The share capital is fully 
paid in. Each share grants the owner one vote at the Annual 
General Meeting of Shareholders. All shares not held by the 
company or one of its subsidiaries are dividend-bearing. 

Conditional share capital
211,340 shares with a nominal value of CHF 32.50 each,  
i.e. CHF 6,868,550 in total. Thereof 190,000 (CHF 6,175,000 
nominal) are dedicated to the convertible bond. 21,340  
(CHF 693,550 nominal) are assigned to the employee share 
option plan. At September 30, 2009, 87,201 share options 
were open conferring the right to buy one registered share 
in Schaffner Holding AG. In fiscal 2008 / 2009 no options were 
exercised out of conditional share capital. 

 
Outstanding convertible bond
On January 28, 2004, Schaffner Holding AG issued a 2.25 % 

convertible bond with a principal amount of CHF 49.4 million 
and final redemption after six years (2004–2010). In 2008 / 2009 
convertible bonds with a principal amount of CHF 1.6 million 
were converted and bonds with a principal amount of CHF 6.3 
million were redeemed.

Investments
Schaffner EMV AG, Luterbach, Switzerland: 100 % of share 
capital of CHF 14 million. Schaffner Trading AG, Luterbach, 
Switzerland: 100 % of share capital of CHF 0.25 million.  
Schaffner EMV Hungary Kft., Kecskemét: 2 % of share capital  
of HUF 8 million. 

Release of the financial statements for publication 
The financial statements were released for publication by the 
Board of Directors of Schaffner Holding AG on December 7, 
2009, and will be presented to the Annual General Meeting for 
approval on January 13, 2010. 

Information about treasury shares
The special reserve for treasury shares amounts to CHF 74,589. 
In the balance sheet, treasury shares are valued at the av-
erage exercise price of the options (CHF 151.27). In fiscal 
2008 / 2009 no options were exercised.

Contingent liabilities 

in CHF 1,000 30.9.2009 30.9.2008

Guarantees 33,000 20,500
Thereof used for credits 0 0

Number
of shares

Fair value 
per share2

in CHF

Average rate
 per share

in CHF

At fair value2

in CHF 1,000
At average rate

in CHF 1,000

At 1.10.2007 23,027 222 222 5,119 5,115
+ Purchase1 23,053 5,497 5,497

– Sale1 – 180 – 46 – 46

– Shares used for employee share option plan1 – 7,649 – 1,354 – 1,354

Valuation differences – 1,808 – 363

At 30.9.2008 38,251 194 231 7,408 8,849
+ Purchase1 1,280 282 282

– Sale1 – 30,984 – 4,339 – 4,339

– Shares used for restricted shares program1 – 1,908 – 270 – 270

– Shares used for conversion of convertible bond1 – 6,316 – 1,466 – 1,466

Valuation differences – 1,566 – 2,981

At 30.9.2009 323 151 231 49 75

1 At actual rates 
2 Year-end rate or the lower average exercise price of the options 
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Schaffner Holding AG

Significant shareholders

30.9.2009 30.9.2008

Number of 
shares

Capital stake Number of
shares

Capital stake

Alpine Select AG1 172,108 27.06 % 155,008 24.38 %

Sarasin Investmentfonds AG, «SaraSelect» 63,255 9.95 % 62,480 9.82 %

Buru Holding AG 32,700 5.14 % 32,700 5.14 %

Shareholders with a stake of less than 5 % 367,554 57.80 % 347,501 54.65 %

Free float 635,617 99.95 % 597,689 93.99 %

Treasury shares 323 0.05 % 38,251 6.01 %

Total shares 635,940 100.00 % 635,940 100.00 %

1 At market value according to IFRS 2 (see note 20, page 32)
2 The disclosure of share based payments was changed from options granted in the financial year to expenses recog-

nized in the financial year.

1 Including Sumara AG and Fabrel AG (organized group under Art. 10 of the ordinance of the Swiss Financial Market)

Compensation of the members of 
the Board of Directors

Members of the Board of Directors 2008 / 2009
 2008 / 2009 30.9.2009

in CHF 1,000

Fee in cash Represen-
tation 

allowance

Expenses for 
share-based 

payments1

Total Shares hold-
ing, number 

of shares

Share options 
holding, num-
ber of options

Leo Steiner, President 76 2 53 131 574 3,060

Herbert Baechler (since 1.1.2009) 28 2 0 30 200 0

Hans Hess 38 2 26 66 1,520 1,250

Peter E. Rued 38 2 26 66 50 2,150

Robert F. Spoerry 38 2 26 66 700 2,450

Markus Zenhaeusern 38 2 13 53 100 500

Total compensation of the members of the Board of 
Directors 256 12 144 412 3,144 9,410

Members of the Board of Directors 2007 / 2008
(restated)2

2007 / 2008
30.9.2008

in CHF 1,000

Fee in cash Represen- 
tation

allowance

Expenses for 
share-based 

payments1

Total Shares
holding, num-
ber of shares

Share options 
holding, num-
ber of options

Leo Steiner, President 80 2 52 134 574 2,060

Hans Hess 40 2 24 66 1,270 750

Peter E. Rued 40 2 28 70 50 1,650

Robert Scherer (resignation 31.1.2008) 13 1 0 14

Robert F. Spoerry 40 2 28 70 700 1,950

Markus Zenhaeusern (since 1.1.2008) 30 2 0 32 100 0

Total compensation of the members of the Board of 
Directors 243 11 132 386 2,694 6,410
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Schaffner Holding AG

Investments, options and conversion rights
of the Group Management

30.9.2009 30.9.2008

Shares holding, 
number of shares

Share options 
holding, number 

of options

Shares holding, 
number of shares

Share options 
holding, number

of options

Alexander Hagemann (Chief Executive Officer) 476 13,450 221 1,750

Kurt Ledermann (Chief Financial Officer) 308 3,858 0 108

Fabian Beck (Vice President Research & Development) 344 5,550 0 2,150

Jean-Michel Calleri (Vice President Sales Europe) 0 2,110 0 2,070

Ah Bee Goh (Vice President Manufacturing) 348 3,800 0 400

Eduard Hadorn (Vice President Business Development Asia) 247 4,350 100 950

Martin Koeppel (Vice President Supply Chain Management) 280 4,810 0 1,510

Christian Stampfer (Vice President Marketing) (resignation 30.4.2009) 0 1,580

Total 2,003 37,928 321 10,518

Schaffner did not grant any loans or credits to current 
members of the Board of Directors, members of the Group 
Management or persons closely associated with them.

Risk assessment
The Board of Directors of Schaffner Holding AG assesses the 
corporate risks within the framework of a systematic risk  

identification and analysis. Based on this assessment, mea-
sures for risk management in the company are defined and 
constantly monitored. The company has a risk management 
system which is designed for the prompt identification  
and analysis of risks as well as the initiation of corresponding 
measures.

Compensation of the members of the Group Management

 2008 / 2009 (restated)1

2007 / 2008

in CHF 1,000

Total Group 
Management

Of which 
Alexander
Hagemann

Total Group
Management

Of which
Alexander
Hagemann

Basic salary 1,828 378 2,033 373

Termination benefits 128 0 0 0

Bonus 0 0 545 131

Representation allowance 75 12 107 12

Contribution to pension funds 172 43 209 43

Expenses for share-based payments2, 3 452 182 228 70

Total compensation received 2,655 615 3,122 629
Social security costs 220 40 274 42

Total 2,875 655 3,396 671

1 The disclosure of share based payments was changed from options granted in the financial year to expenses recog-
nized in the financial year.

2 At market value according to IFRS 2 (see note 20, page 32) 
3 The market value of the options granted in the actual financial year for the Group Management is CHF 1,830,000, of 

which CHF 730,000 for Alexander Hagemann (previous year: CHF 268,000 and CHF 113,000).
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The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual General Meet-
ing that the retained earnings be appropriated as follows:

in CHF 1,000  2008 / 2009 2007 / 2008

Net loss of the fiscal year – 1,062 – 288

Retained earnings carried forward 10,245 14,267

Changes in reserves for treasury shares 8,774 – 3,734

Retained earnings at disposal of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 17,957 10,245
Allocation to legal reserves 0 0

To be carried forward 17,957 10,245

Total registered shares issued 635,940 635,940

Treasury shares held by the company or its subsidiaries – 323 – 38,251

Dividend-bearing shares1 635,617 597,689

Schaffner Holding AG

Proposal for the appropriation of 
retained earnings

1 All shares which are not held by the company or one of its subsidiaries are dividend-bearing.
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Schaffner Holding AG

Report of the statutory auditors

To the General Meeting of Schaffner Holding AG, Luterbach 
As statutory auditor, we have audited the accompanying financial statements of Schaffner Holding AG, which comprise the bal-
ance sheet, income statement and notes (pages 42 to 45) for the year ended September 30, 2009.

Board of Directors’ responsibility
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of 
Swiss law and the company’s articles of incorporation. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining an 
internal control system relevant to the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. The Board of Directors is further responsible for selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies 
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accord-
ance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain rea-
sonable assurance whether the financial statements  
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement  
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers the internal 
control system relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are  
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control system. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness  
of accounting estimates made, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the au-
dit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
 
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2009, comply with Swiss law and the company’s arti-
cles of incorporation.

Report on other legal requirements
We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Oversight Act (AOA) and independence 
(article 728 Code of Obligations (CO) and article 11 AOA) and that there are no circumstances incompatible with our independ-
ence.

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm that an internal control 
system exists, which has been designed for the preparation of financial statements according to the instructions of the Board of 
Directors.

We further confirm that the proposed appropriation of available earnings complies with Swiss law and the company’s articles of 
incorporation. We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you be approved.

Berne, December 7, 2009

Ernst & Young Ltd

  

Roland Ruprecht  Marc Christen
Licensed audit expert   Licensed audit expert
(Auditor-in-charge)  
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Information to shareholders

Information policy
 
Schaffner Holding AG communicates openly and transpar-
ently with its shareholders and other stakeholders. It provides 
comprehensive information in good time and in compliance 
with all applicable rules and guidelines of the SIX Swiss Ex-
change. Future-oriented statements by the Schaffner Group 
are always assessments by the Management with regard to 
the current and future position and performance of the com-
pany at the time the statement is made. Schaffner Holding AG 
does not update information published in the past.

Schaffner Holding AG publishes an Interim Report and a 
detailed Annual Report on its Web site every year in order to 
provide shareholders with information about the company’s 
performance and results. The financial statements are pre-
pared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS). Shareholders can request a copy of the 
printed Annual Report. 

Schaffner Holding AG provides information about current 
developments in accordance with the regulations of the SIX 
Swiss Exchange. The relevant communications are distributed 
simultaneously to a wide range of recipients. 
 
In the context of Schaffner Holding AG’s Investor Relations 
program, the following activities among others are carried out 
in compliance with the guidelines of the SIX Swiss Exchange 
on ad-hoc publicity: 
– Annual General Meeting
– Presentation of the annual results
– Teleconferences upon publication of the half-yearly 

results or other news
– Meetings with shareholders, investors and analysts during 

roadshows
– Themed investor days for shareholders, investors and 

analysts

Annual and interim reports, media information and presenta-
tions for shareholders, investors and analysts are published 
on the company’s Web site at www.schaffner.com and filed 
under the date of publication. Those interested also have 
the opportunity to subscribe to Investor Relations messages, 
which are sent to them by e-mail at the same time as to all 
other stakeholder groups. 

Official organ of publication
Swiss Official Gazette of Commerce (SOGC; Schweizerisches 
Handelsamtsblatt).

Articles of association
The articles of association can be viewed or obtained at the 
company‘s head office. 

Investor Relations contacts
– Alexander Hagemann, Chief Executive Officer 
 (alexander.hagemann@schaffner.com)
– Kurt Ledermann, Chief Financial Officer 
 (kurt.ledermann@schaffner.com)

Calendar of events
Schaffner Holding AG’s fiscal year runs from October 1 to 
September 30.

13.1.2010 14th Annual General Meeting 

12.5.2010 Publication of 2009 / 2010 Interim Report

7.12.2010 Publication of 2009 / 2010 Annual Report

12.1.2011 15th Annual General Meeting



Schaffner Holding AG Financial Statements 2008 / 200949

Key share figures

 2008 / 2009 (restated)
2007 / 2008

2006 / 2007 2005 / 2006 2004 / 2005

Number of shares (par value CHF 32.50) 635,940 635,940 635,940 635,940 635,940

Weighted average number of outstanding 
shares (dividend-bearing) 606,124 606,317 616,198 621,882 608,737

Earnings per share in CHF – 18.04 15.43 8.77 5.76 – 0.65

Shareholders’ equity per share in CHF 74.39 91.44 81.31 80.17 72.43

Repayment of nominal value in CHF 0.001 3.50 3.00 11.00 0.00

Free float in  % 99.9 94.0 96.4 95.2 95.9

Stock market prices2

12-month high in CHF 233 271 277 195 208

12-month low in CHF 118 214 166 148 150

Year-end in CHF 170 230 267 178 195

Stock market capitalization2

12-month high in CHF million 148 172 176 124 132

12-month low in CHF million 75 136 106 94 95

Year-end in CHF million 108 146 169 113 124

1 As per the proposal of the Board of Directors to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of January 13, 2010 
2 Fiscal year from October 1 to September 30 (source: Bloomberg)

1 Source: Thomson Datastream

Share price performance 1.10.04 to 30.9.091

CHF
Share price performance 1.10.08 to 30.9.091 
CHF

Share trading
The registered shares of Schaffner Holding AG are traded on 
SIX Swiss Exchange under the securities number 906 209. The 
convertible bond of Schaffner Holding AG is traded on the SIX 
Swiss Exchange under the securities number 1 754 641.

Ticker symbols
Registered share: SAHN; convertible bond: SAH04

For more information on the Schaffner share, please see 
page 34.

 Schaffner registered shares
 Swiss Performance Index (adjusted)
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Key figures

in CHF 1,000
 2008 / 2009 (restated)

2007 / 2008
2006 / 20071 2005 / 20061 2004 / 2005

Net sales 133,363 182,445 186,134 184,046 166,822
Components and Modules Division 133,363 182,445 170,281 137,798 122,755

Test Systems Division 0 0 15,853 46,248 44,067

Operating result (EBIT) – 9,193 13,892 9,632 7,658 2,476
as  % of net sales –6.9 7.6 5.2 4.2 1.5

Net profit / loss – 10,935 9,355 5,403 3,580 – 390
as  % of net sales – 8.2 5.1 2.9 1.9 – 0.2

Total assets 126,883 148,078 147,213 141,765 133,959

Shareholders’ equity 47,305 58,149 51,710 50,985 46,061
as  % of total assets 37.3 39.3 35.1 36.0 34.4

Number of employees 1,808 2,318 2,375 2,244 2,095

1 Pro forma figures for comparison (without IFRS 5)

This Annual Report is also available in German. 
The German version is legally binding.

Dieser Geschäftsbericht ist auch in Deutsch verfügbar.
Die deutsche Version ist rechtlich verbindlich.
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The global presence of the 
Schaffner Group, with its 
international engineering, 
production, sales and distri-
bution organization, supports 
customer-focused logistics and 
enables it to forge links with 
international customers.
The Schaffner Group is a globally ac-
tive company with a local presence 
in all key markets. Highly efficient 
production facilities in Europe and 
Asia as well as 20 customer service 
and application centers enable 
streamlined processes, consulting 
and customer-oriented engineering. 
This in turn speeds up the develop-

ment of customized applications 
and considerably reduces delivery 
times. Comprehensive testing servi-
ces based on the latest measuring 
systems can be used directly in the 
customer’s development depart-
ments or in the Schaffner laborato-
ry. Engineers and consultants from 
the Schaffner Group know their cus-
tomers personally. They are familiar 
with their individual requirements 
and also understand the cultural 
differences.

     Headquarters, global inno- 
vation and development center

Switzerland – Luterbach

     European logistics center

France – Illzach

     Development and production
centers

China – Shanghai
Germany – Bueren
Hungary – Kecskemét
Thailand – Lamphun

    Sales and application centers

China – Beijing
China – Shanghai
China – Shenzhen
Germany – Bueren
Germany – Karlsruhe
Germany – Nuertingen
Germany – Warstein
Finnland – Lohja
France – Argenteuil
France – Cesson-Sévigné
Italy – Cinisello Balsamo (MI)
Japan – Tokyo
Singapore – Singapore
Spain – Madrid
Sweden – Sollentuna
Switzerland – Luterbach
Taiwan – Taipei
Thailand – Bangkok
UK – Wokingham
USA – Edison, N.J.

Innovation Quality Proximity to the customer

With an experienced team of around 80 develop-
ment engineers, the Schaffner Group supports  
customers around the globe in the areas of power 
electronics, electromagnetic compatibility (EMC)  
and power quality.

The Schaffner Group implemented a globally inte-
grated quality management system to ensure that 
the requirements of the target markets can be  
met. Customers receive support with certification for 
the relevant standards in EMC and power quality.  

Four development and production centers worldwide 
give the Schaffner Group’s application engineers a 
presence in all key markets, where they work closely 
with customers on developing and integrating new 
EMC and power quality solutions.

Global presence and unique  
proximity to the customer  



Schaffner’s ECOsine™ 
Active harmonic filters 
guarantee that the electri-
cal infrastructure of build-
ings functions perfectly 
at all times and ensure 
the efficient and reliable 
operation of electrical 
and electronic devices 
and systems. They are 
installed, for example, at 
the KKL Luzern Culture 
and Convention Centre. 
Apart from building ser- 
vices, typical areas of appli- 
cation for the ECOsine™ 
Active family’s high-tech 
filters include mining, wa-
ter treatment and sewage 
works, public transport 
including underground rail 
systems, and the produc-
tion of fossil fuels. 

Schaffner Holding AG
Nordstrasse 11  4542 Luterbach  Switzerland
T +41 32 681 66 26  F +41 32 681 66 30
www.schaffner.com




